
 

Date: July 04, 2023 

To, 

BSE Limited 

Listing Department,  

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 

Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001 

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

Scrip Code: 974138 & 974178 

 

Subject: Notice of Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for FY 2022-23  

 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

 

Please note that the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company is scheduled to be held on 

Wednesday, July 26, 2023. Pursuant to regulation 53(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we enclose herewith the 

Annual Report sent to the shareholders along with the notice of the AGM.  

 

The said Notice and the Annual Report are also available on the website of the Company i.e. 

www.irbinfratrust.co.in.  

 

We request you to take the above on record. 

 

Thanking you. 

For Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 

 

 

 

Shilpa Todankar 

Director 

 

http://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/


 

NOTICE  

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Yedeshi 

Aurangabad Tollway Limited will be held on Wednesday, July 26, 2023 at 1.00 p.m. (IST) via 

Video Conference Facility or other Audio Visual Means, to transact the following business:  

 

Ordinary Business:  

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 

Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Abhay Phatak (DIN: 09519500), Director, who retires 

by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

Special Business:  
 

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution 

as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records & 

Audit) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any 

statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the 

remuneration payable to M/s. V R & Associates, Cost Accountant (Membership No. 32936 & 

Firm Registration No. 000516), appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to 

conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24, 

amounting to Rs. 50,000/- p.a. (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) be and is hereby ratified and 

confirmed.” 

 

Regd. Office: 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani 

Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill 

Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 400076  

 

Place: Mumbai                                                                                                    

Date: July 03, 2023 

By order of the Board 

For Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited  

 

 

Sd/-                                                                

                  Shilpa Todankar                 

                                                                      Director  

DIN : 08683910 

Address: 408, Ganeshkunj CHS, Maheshwari Nagar, 

Kondivita, Andheri (East) Mumbai - 400059 



  

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

Item No. 2 

 

Mr. Abhay Phatak (DIN: 09519500) was appointed as non-executive Director of the Company liable 

to retire by rotation on March 9, 2022. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, Mr. Abhay Phatak being the longest appointed Director in the office would retire by 

rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. Mr. Abhay Phatak being eligible has 

offered himself for re-appointment as Director liable to retire by rotation. Accordingly, the Board 

recommends the resolution in relation to appointment of Mr. Abhay Phatak as a Director, for the 

approval by the shareholders of the Company. 

 

Mr. Abhay P. Phatak, aged 51 years, has a bachelor’s degree in Commerce from Mumbai University 

in the year 1992. He has around 31 years of experience of working in various fields & at various 

positions, including the Accounts & Project Finance. 

 

Mr. Abhay Phatak does not hold share in the Company. The details of Board Meetings attended by 

him during the year under review are given in Board’s Report. He is not related to any Director and/or 

Key Managerial Personnel of the company. The Directorship and Membership of Committees held by 

Mr. Abhay Phatak in other companies is as given below: 

 

Sr. 

No 

Names of the Companies  Director / Membership of Committee 

1.  CG Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee 

2.  AE Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee 

3.  Kaithal Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee 

4.  IRB Hapur Moradabad Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee, Member of Audit 

Committee 

5.  Kishangarh Gulabpura Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee 

6.  Udaipur Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee 

7.  IRB Westcoast Tollway Limited Director, Member of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee 

8.  Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited Director, Member of Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee and Risk Management Committee 

 

 



  

 

Except Mr. Abhay Phatak, being an appointee, none of the Directors of the Company and their 

relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 2. 

 

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in Item No. 2 of the Notice for approval of 

the members. 

 

Item No. 3 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. V R & Associates, Cost Accountant Firm, 

to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2022-23. In terms of the 

provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records & 

Audit) Rules, 2014 and Rule 14(a)(ii) of The Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 

remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is to be ratified by the Members of the Company. The 

remuneration of Rs. 50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) per annum is payable to M/s. V R & 

Associates, Cost Accountant for the audit to be conducted for financial year 2023-24. Accordingly, 

the Members are requested to ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the audit to be 

conducted for financial year 2023-24. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, is in any way 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said Resolution.  

 

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for 

approval by the Members. 

 

 

Regd. Office: 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani 

Knowledge Park, Technology Street, 

Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 

400076 

 

Place: Mumbai                                                                                                    

Date: July 03, 2023 

By order of the Board 

For Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited  

 

 

Sd/-                                                   

                  Shilpa Todankar                 

                                                                      Director  

DIN : 08683910 

Address: 408, Ganeshkunj CHS, Maheshwari Nagar, 

Kondivita, Andheri (East) Mumbai - 400059 
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NOTES: 

 

1. In view of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (the “MCA”) through circular 

dated December 28, 2022, any other applicable Circular issued from time to time including any 

amendments/clarifications thereto (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Circulars”) have 

allowed the Companies to conduct their Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing 

(VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) up to September 30, 2023, without the physical 

presence of the Members at a common venue, subject to the fulfilment of conditions as specified 

in the circulars. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the circulars, 

the AGM of the Company is being held through VC. 

 

2. On the AGM date at scheduled time, for participation in Video Conference the Shareholders are 

requested click on the web-link to be provided separately to participate through Video 

Conference. 

 

3. The facility of joining the AGM through VC will be opened 15 minutes before the scheduled 

start-time of the AGM. 

 

4. The Annual Reports (including financial Statements, Board’s report, Auditor’s report or other 

documents required to be attached therewith), is being sent by email to the members, trustees for 

the debenture holder of debentures issued by the Company if any and to all other persons so 

entitled. Further, the notice for AGM shall be given only through emails registered with the 

Company or with the depository participant / depository. 

 

5. Accordingly, the financial statements (including Board’s report, Auditor’s report and other 

documents required to be attached therewith) / Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 and 

AGM Notice are being sent to the shareholders on their email addresses registered with the 

Company or with the depository participant / depository. 

 

6. As per the Circulars, the Shareholders may also note that the Company would not be sending the 

Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24 and AGM notice by post to the shareholders whose 

email address is not registered with the Company or depository participants/depository. 

 

7. The resolutions as set out in this Notice will be decided on a show of hands at the AGM. 

 

8. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at 

the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not 

be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC, physical attendance of 

Members has been dispensed with. 

 

9. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the 

AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. However, in 
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pursuance of Section 112 and 113 of the Act, representatives of the members may be appointed 

for the purpose of participation and voting in the meeting held through VC or OAVM. 

 

10. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are 

requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their 

representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting by sending email to 

irbinfrastructuretrust@irb.co.in 

 

11. The members attending the meeting through VC shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 

quorum of the meeting under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

12. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained 

under Section 170 of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the 

directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically 

for inspection by the members during the AGM. 

 

13. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any 

fee by the members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members 

seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to irbinfrastructuretrust@irb.co.in 

 

14. As the AGM will be held through VC, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice. 

 

15. Members are requested to address all correspondence, to The Director, Ms. Shilpa Todankar, Off 

No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai, 

Mumbai – 400076 or send email to shilpa.todankar@irb.co.in. 

 

16. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached and 

forms part of this notice. 

 

Instructions for the Members for attending the AGM through Video Conference: 

1. Members may note that the ensuing AGM of the Company will be convened through VC in 

compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Circulars. 

The facility to attend the meeting through VC will be provided by the Company. The web-link for 

attending the AGM, has been provided in this notice. The Shareholders are requested to click on 

the said link to attend live proceedings of AGM. 

 

2. Members can participate in the AGM through their desktops / smartphones / laptops etc. 

However, for better experience and smooth participation, it is advisable to join the meeting 

through desktops / laptops with high-speed internet connectivity. 

 

3. Please note that participants connecting from mobile devices or tablets or through laptop 

connecting via mobile hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their 
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respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to 

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

4. The facility of joining the AGM through VC will be opened 15 minutes before the scheduled 

start-time of the AGM. 

 

5. Members who would like to express their views/ask questions may post their 

queries/views/questions by sending email to kaustubh.shevade@irb.co.in by mentioning the 

name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number. The window shall remain 

active from 10.00 am (IST) on July 24, 2023 until 5.00 pm (IST) on July 25, 2023. 

 

6. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact on email: 

Kaustubh.shevade@irb.co.in or Tel +91 40 6640 4200. 

 

Instructions for members for voting during the AGM session: 

1. The Company has designated the email address ‘kaustubh.shevade@irb.co.in, (hereinafter 

referred as Designated email address) on which the members can send email for conveying their 

vote when a poll is required to be taken during the meeting on any resolution. 

 

2. The members are requested to cast their votes on the resolution only by sending emails through 

their email addresses which are registered with the Company. The said emails shall only be sent 

to the designated email address as mentioned hereinabove.  

 

3. The Company has provided the facility to Members to enable them to exercise their right to vote 

on the matters listed in the Notice by sending email to the designated email id during the AGM. 
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Board’s Report 

 

Dear Stakeholders,  

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their report on the business and operations, along with the 

audited financial statements of your Company, for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

 

 (Amount in Rs. millions)  

Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

Total Income 2,637.79 1,602.12 

Total Expenditure 439.46 337.15 

Earnings before interest, depreciation and tax 2,198.33 1,264.97 

Less: Finance costs 

  Depreciation 

1,903.05 

559.99 

1,796.93 

305.02 

Profit/ loss before tax (264.71) (836.96) 

Less: Provision for tax - - 

Current tax - (2.07) 

MAT Credit Entitlement - - 

Deferred tax - - 

Profit/ loss after tax before minority interest (264.71) (834.88) 

Less: Minority interest - - 

Profit/ loss after tax and after minority interest (264.71) (834.88) 

Add: Profit/ loss at the beginning of the year (2,796.56) (1,961.66) 

Profit available for appropriation (3,061.27) (2,796.56) 

Appropriations: 

Interim Dividend/ Proposed Interim Dividend 

Tax on equity dividend 

Transfer to General Reserve 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period: 

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 

- - 

Balance Carried Forward to Balance Sheet (3,061.27) (2,796.56) 

 

The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserves.  

 

  



 
 
 

OPERATION AND PERFORMANCE  

 

During the year, your Company earned total income of Rs.2637.79 Million and Earnings before Interest, 

Depreciation and Tax of Rs.2198.33 Million for the year ended March 31, 2023. After providing for 

Finance costs of Rs.1903.05 Million and for Depreciation and amortization of Rs.559.99 Million, the 

Loss before tax is Rs.264.71 Million. The net Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 stood at Rs.264.71 

Million, as against Loss of Rs.834.88 Million for the previous year.  

 

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company, during the year under review. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments, if any, are given in the Notes to the Financial 

Statements. 

 

DIVIDEND  

 

Your Company has not recommended any dividend for the year under review. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

As on March 31, 2022 the Authorized Share Capital stood at Rs. 216,00,00,000/- and Paid up Equity 

Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs. 215,75,70,010/-. During the year under review, there are no 

changes in the authorized and paid up share capital of the Company. 

 

DEBENTURES 

 

During the year under review, the Company has issued and allotted 15,150 INR denominated senior, 

secured, redeemable, listed, rated, non-convertible debentures (the Debentures) of ₹ 10 Lakh each in two 

tranches on private placement basis. The Debentures issued by the Company are listed with BSE Limited 

w.e.f. September 2, 2022. 

 

Debenture Trustees 

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited 

Address : 202, Maker Tower, ‘E’, 

Cuffe Parade, Colaba, Mumbai – 400005 

Email: corporate@sbicaptrustee.com 

Website: www.sbicaptrustee.com 

Contact No. 022 4302 5555 



 
 
 

Fax – 022 22040465 

 

CREDIT RATING OF COMPANY  

 

CRISIL Ratings Limited has assigned rating to CRISIL AAA/Stable for Non-Convertible Debentures of 

Rs.15,150 Million. 

 

BORROWINGS  

 

As on March 31, 2023, your Company’s borrowings availed stood at Rs.15,150 Millions. 

 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

 

During the year under review, the Company had no subsidiary(ies). 

 

CHANGE IN HOLDING COMPANY 

 

During the year under review, there is no change in holding entity of the Company. 

 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERAIL PERSONNEL 

 

Current Directors of the Company are Mr. Abhay Phatak, Ms. Shilpa Todankar, Mr. Chandrashekhar 

Kaptan and Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar. 

 

During the year under review, Mr. Devendra Ranka was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Mr. 

Devendra Ranka was appointed as Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Swati Chandekar was appointed as 

Company Secretary of the Company. 

 

Mr. Abhay Phatak (DIN: 09519500), Director of the Company, is liable to retire by rotation at the 

forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your 

Directors recommend his appointment as Director liable to retire by rotation. 

 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid 

down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

On the basis of confirmation received by the Company, all Directors including Independent Directors 

appointed during the year have complied with the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company. Further, the 
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Board also states that Independent Directors are person of person of integrity and has adequate experience 

to serve as an Independent Director of your Company.  

 

BOARD EVALUATION  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual performance 

evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of 

its Committees.  

 

The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of the following key 

areas: 

i. Attendance of the Directors in Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings 

ii. Quality of contribution to Board deliberations 

iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance 

iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management 

v. Commitment to shareholder and other stakeholder interests 

 

The evaluation involves Self-Evaluation by the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board 

of Directors. A member of the Board does not participate in the discussion of his / her evaluation.  

 

The Board found its members’ performance satisfactory.  

 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee 

members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee 

meetings, etc. 

 

In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, Chairperson of 

the Company was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive 

directors. Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the 

independent director being evaluated. 

 

REMUNERATION POLICY  

 

The Board had adopted Nomination and Remuneration Policy which sets out the guidelines regarding the 

nomination, remuneration and removal of directors, key managerial personnel and employees of the 

Company. 

 

The policy on Directors/Key Managerial Personnel’s appointment & remuneration is annexed herewith as 

“Annexure A”. 
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MATERIAL CHANGES, COMMITMENTS, IF ANY: 

 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which 

have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report. 

 

MEETINGS  

 

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors met as and when business required. The 

intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The Details of dates of meetings of the Board and Committee held during the financial year, indicating 

the number of meetings attended by each director is given in “Annexure B”. 

 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India (ICSI). 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 

operations as approved by the Audit Committee and the Board. The Internal Financial Controls are 

adequate and working effectively.  

 

The scope and authority of the Internal Audit is laid down by the Audit Committee and accordingly the 

Internal Audit Plan is laid out. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Auditors reports 

to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

 

The Internal Auditors monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the 

Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of 

the Company. Based on the report of internal audit, process owners/concern department undertake 

corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit 

observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Company. 

 

OTHER DISLOSURE 

 

Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013 is mentioned in “Annexure C”.  
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WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM 

 

The Company has adopted whistleblower policy to deal with genuine concerns of the employees and 

directors. All Employees and Directors are made aware of the whistleblower mechanism. The Company 

has established a system to ensure functioning of the said mechanism. During the year under review, the 

Company has not received any complaints under Whistle Blower Mechanism. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

The Annual Return as required under Section 92 and Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 shall be made available on the 

website at https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in, once the it is filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

M/s. MKPS & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company, were appointed as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years commencing from the conclusion of Annual 

General Meeting (AGM) held in the Year 2020 till the conclusion of AGM to be held in the year 2025, as 

per the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013. They have confirmed their eligibility 

under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under, to continue as statutory 

auditors for FY 2023-24. 

 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by Statutory Auditors in their report for 

the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. 

 

COST AUDITORS  

 

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 

Amendment Rules, 2014, the Cost Audit Records maintained by the Company in respect of its road 

construction activity is required to be audited. Accordingly, for the Financial Year 2022-23, the company 

has maintained and audited its cost records from Mrs. Netra Shashikant Apte as per section 148 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

For financial Year 2023-24, your Directors have appointed M/s. V R & Associates, Cost Accountant Firm 

(Membership No. 32936 & Firm Registration No. 000516) to audit the cost records of the Company on 

remuneration amounting to Rs. 50,000/- p.a. As required under the Companies Act, 2013, the 

remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required to be placed before the Members in a general 

meeting for their ratification. Accordingly, a resolution seeking Member’s ratification for the 
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remuneration payable to M/s. V R & Associates, Cost Auditors is included in the Notice convening the 

Annual General Meeting. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s. MMJB & 

Associates LLP, Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the 

Financial Year 2022-23. 

 

The Company, in order to comply with Section 203 of the Act, had been seeking competent candidates 

and it would continue to make reasonable efforts to recruit/depute competent persons so as to comply 

with applicable provisions. 

The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as “Annexure D”. 

 

FIXED DEPOSITS  

 

Your Company has not accepted or renewed any deposit from public during the year under review.  

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were in compliance with 

the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under, and necessary approvals 

have been obtained as required. 

 

The details of contract and arrangements with related parties in form AOC-2 is annexed herewith as 

“Annexure E”. For disclosure, transaction/s more than 10% of Annual turnover with related party are 

considered material. 

 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

 

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going 

concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key 

business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed 

through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.  
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  

 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by 

them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 

2013: 

 

a. that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, 

the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures, if any; 

 

b. that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been 

selected and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 

and of the Loss of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

 

c. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

d. that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

 

e.  that systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were 

adequate and operating effectively. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

The Company was not required to spend any amount on CSR activities during the year under review. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

The Company doesn’t have any employee on its roll, hence the provisions of Section 197(12) are not 

applicable. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

There were no earnings / expenditures in the foreign currency, during the year under consideration. 
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Since the Company does not have any manufacturing facility, the other particulars required to be provided 

in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 are not applicable.  
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 

    

Shilpa Todankar      Abhay Phatak 

Director       Director 

DIN: 08683910       DIN: 09519500 

Address: 408, Ganeshkunj CHS, Maheshwari Nagar, Address: B/106, Shashank CHS       

Kondivita, Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400059   Mulund Vikroli Link Road, 

Bhandup Village, Bhandup (East) 

Mumbai - 400042 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: July 3, 2023 
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Annexure A 

Criteria for appointment of Board of Directors 

 

As per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board shall have required number of independent 

directors of their Board. Further, as per SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, the 

majority Directors on the Board of the Company will be appointed by the Investment Manager in 

consultation with the Trustee of IRB Infrastructure Trust (“Trust”). 

 

The members of the Board of Directors are expected to possess the required expertise, skill and 

experience to effectively manage and direct the objectives of the Trust to attain its organizational & 

business goals. They are expected to be persons with vision, leadership qualities, proven competence and 

integrity, and with a strategic bent of mind. 

 

Each member of the Board of Directors is expected to ensure that his/ her personal interest does not run in 

conflict with the company’s interests. Moreover, each member is expected to use his/ her professional 

judgment to maintain both the substance and appearance of professionalism and objectivity. 

 

Remuneration Policy 

 

The Company doesn’t have any employee on its roll.  

 

Remuneration to Director/s, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 

 

The Remuneration/ Compensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director/s and Key Managerial 

Personnel, if any, shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 

under or any other enactment for the time being in force. The remuneration including incentives to Senior 

Management shall be in accordance with the Company’s policy. A performance appraisal be carried out 

annually and promotions or incentives or increment will be based on performance and the Company’s 

Policy. 

 

Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director 

 

The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration / compensation / commission as per 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made thereunder. The amount of sitting fees for 

attending Board and Committee meetings shall be fixed by Board of Directors, from time to time, subject 

to ceiling/ limits as provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other 

enactment for the time being in force. 
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Annexure B 

 

The Details of dates of meetings of the Board and Committees and Composition of Committees of 

Board of Directors 

 

As on 31.03.2023, the Board of Directors consists of the following members: 

 

1. Ms. Shilpa Todankar   Chairperson 

2. Mr. Abhay Phatak   Non-Executive Director 

3. Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar  Independent Director 

4. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan  Independent Director 

 

As on 31.03.2023, the Committees consists of the following members –  

 

Audit committee: 

 

1. Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar   Chairman 

2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar    Member 

3. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan  Member 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 

1. Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar   Chairman 

2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar    Member 

3. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan   Member 

 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: 

 

1. Ms. Shilpa Todankar                              Chairperson 

2. Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar                       Member 

3. Mr. Abhay Phatak                                  Member 

 

Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

1. Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar   Chairman 

2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar    Member 

3. Mr. Abhay Phatak               Member 
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Risk Management Committee 

1. Ms. Shilpa Todankar                              Chairperson 

2. Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan                   Member 

3. Mr. Abhay Phatak                                   Member 

 

Number of Board/Committee Meetings attended by the Directors 

 

Name of 

Director 

Board 

Meetings 

Audit 

Committee 

N & R 

Committee 

CSR 

Committee 

Stakeholders 

Relationship 

Committee 

Risk 

Management 

Committee 

Ms. Shilpa 

Todankar 

10 7 2 - 1 2 

Mr. Darshan 

Sangurdekar 

10 7 2 - 1 N.A. 

Mr. 

Chandrashekhar 

Kaptan 

9 6 1 N.A. N.A. 2 

Mr. Abhay 

Phatak 

10 N.A. N.A. - 1 2 

 

Dates of Board and Committee Meetings held during the year 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Date of the 

Meeting 

Board  Audit 

Committee 

N&R 

Committee  

Stakeholders 

Relationship 

Committee 

Risk 

Managemen

t Committee 

CSR 

Committee 

1.  04/05/2022 √ √ √ - - - 

2.  01/08/2022 √ √ - - - - 

3.  10/08/2022 √ - - - - - 

4.  30/08/2022 √ - - - - - 

5.  09/09/2022 √ - - - - - 

6.  17/10/2022 √ √ - - - - 

7.  10/11/2022 √ √ √ - - - 

8.  25/01/2023 √ √ - √ √ - 

9.  20/03/2023 √ √ - -  - 

10.  31/03/2023 √ √ - - √ - 

 

 

 

  



 
 
 

Annexure C 

 

Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 

 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 22 of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 read with Rules thereunder, the Company has not received any 

complaint of sexual harassment during the year under review.  

 

The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee 

as required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013.  
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Annexure D 

 

FORM NO. MR.3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2023 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

 To,  

The Members,  

Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited  
Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  

Powai Mumbai- 400076  

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate practices by Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited (hereinafter called ‘the 

Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibility:  

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and maintenance of 

records based on audit. We have conducted the audit in accordance with the applicable Auditing 

Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Auditing Standards requires that 

the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.  

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 

agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our 

opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 

(hereinafter called the ‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also 

that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent and in the 

manner reporting made hereinafter:  

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provision of:  

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under;  

 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;  
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(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; (Not Applicable 

to the Company during the Audit Period)  
 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent 

of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);  

 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -  

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)  

 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;  

 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)  

 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)  

 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021;  

 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  

 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)  

 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018. (‘Buy-

back Regulations’) (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)  

 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulation 2018. 

(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)  

 

(j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 

2014; to the extent applicable to the listed entity;  

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

 

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 and amendments made thereunder. (‘Listing Regulations')  
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Further, the Company being High Value Debt Listed Entity, it is complying with the provisions of 

Listing Regulations on Comply and Explain basis and is in the process of full compliance.  

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines and Standards etc. made there under except that:  

 

1. the Company has appointed Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer and Company 

Secretary w.e.f. November 10, 2022 pursuant to provision of Section 203 (1) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014. The Company has informed that adequate fine has been paid with BSE limited (BSE) in this 

regard and it has not received further communication from BSE.  

 

2. the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Executive officer appointed under section 203 (1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, also holds the position of Key Managerial Personnel in other project 

companies of IRB Infrastructure Trust (the Holding Entity).  

 

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the 

examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the 

Company has complied with the following law applicable specifically to the Company:  

 

• Indian Tolls Act, 1851  

• National Highway Act, 1956 and rules made thereunder  

 

We further report that  

 

The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 

place during the audit period were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 

agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (except few meetings were convened at a shorter notice 

for which necessary approvals obtained as per applicable provisions) and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting.  

 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in 

the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.  

 

We further report that there are systems and processes in the Company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines. The Adequacy and efficacy of the 

same shall be read in the context of remarks made in this report.  
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We Further report that during the audit period the Company has:  

 

a) Taken shareholders’ approval by way of Special Resolution in the Extra Ordinary General 

Meeting held on August 02, 2022 for increasing the limits under Section 180 (1) (a) and section 

180 (1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 upto Rs 3,000 crores and ₹ 5,500 crores respectively.  

 

b) Issued and allotted 15,150 Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Listed, Rated, Non-convertible 

Debentures of ₹ 10 Lakh each in various tranches on private placement basis.  

 

 

Date: June 30, 2023 
Place: Mumbai  

 

For MMJB & Associates LLP  

Company Secretaries  

Deepti Joshi  

Designated Partner  

FCS: 8167  

CP: 8968  
PR: 2826/2022  

UDIN: F008167E000528181 
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‘Annexure A’  

To,  

Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited  
Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  

Powai Mumbai City 400076  

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

  

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

  

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 

the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the company.  

 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on test basis.  

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

company.  

 

 

Date: June 30, 2023 

Place: Mumbai  

 

For MMJB & Associates LLP  

Company Secretaries  

Deepti Joshi  

Designated Partner  

FCS: 8167  

CP: 8968  
PR: 2826/2022  

     UDIN: F008167E000528181 
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Annexure E 

 

AOC-2 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: Nil 
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YEDESHI AURANGABAD TOLLWAY LIMITED 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT – FY 2022-23 

[Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements), Regulations, 2015] 

 

A. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Your Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance based on certain key principles, including fairness 

and integrity, transparency and disclosure, accountability, equal treatment to all the stakeholders and social 

responsibility. Your Company practices Corporate Governance extends beyond corporate laws. Its 

fundamental objective is the institution of and adherence to systems and procedures, ensuring the 

commitment of the Board of Directors in managing the Company’s affairs in a transparent manner to 

maximize the long-term value of the stakeholders at large. 

 

Your Company has adopted an appropriate Corporate Governance framework to ensure timely and accurate 

disclosure on all material matters including the financial position, performance, ownership and governance 

of the Company. 

 

Your Company’s policies and practices relating to the Corporate Governance are discussed in the following 

sections: 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

   

(i) Board Membership Criteria 

 

The members of the Board of Directors accessed and observed that the Directors of your Company possess 

the required expertise, skill and experience to effectively manage and direct your Company to attain its 

organizational goals. They also have leadership qualities, proven competence and integrity, and with a 

strategic bent of mind. 

 

Each member of the Board of Directors of your Company have ensured that his/ her personal interest does 

not run in conflict with your Company’s interests and used their professional judgment to maintain both the 

substance and appearance of independence and objectivity. 

 

(ii) Composition of the Board 

 

The Board of Directors of your Company has an optimum combination of Non-executive Directors and 

Independent Director to have a balanced Board Structure. The Board has 4 (Four) Directors, comprising of 

the Non-executive Directors and Independent Director, Ms. Shilpa Todankar and Mr. Abhay Phatak are 

Non-executive Directors, other 2 (Two) Non-executive Directors viz. Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar  and Mr. 

Chandrashekhar Kaptan are Independent Directors of the Company. The Chairperson of the Board of 



 

 

Directors of your Company is a Non-Independent Director. In the opinion of the Board, all Independent 

Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the management. 

 

The composition of the Board of Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2023 is as follows: 

 

Name of 

Director  

Category of 

Director  

Relationship 

with other 

Directors  

No. of 

Directors

hips in 

other 

companie

s 

including 

this listed 

entity*  

Number of 

membershi

ps in 

Audit/ 

Stakeholde

r 

Committee

(s) 

including 

this listed 

entity 

(Refer 

Regulation 

26(1) of 

Listing 

Regulation

s) ** 

No of post of 

Chairperson 

in Audit/ 

Stakeholder 

Committee 

held in listed 

entities 

including 

this listed 

entity (Refer 

Regulation 

26(1) of 

Listing  

Regulations) 

** 

Directorship

s held in 

other listed 

entities# 

Ms. Shilpa 

Chandrashekhar

Todankar 

DIN: 08683910 

Non-executive 

Director  

 

None 9 10 None None 

Mr. Abhay 

Prabhakar 

Phatak 

DIN: 09519500 

Non-executive 

Director  

 

None 9 3 None None 

Mr. Darshan 

Suryakant  

Sangurdekar 

DIN: 07139838  

Non-Executive 

- Independent  

Director 

None 9 10 5 None 

Mr. 

Chandrashekhar 

Shankarrao 

Kaptan 

DIN: 01643564 

Non-Executive 

- Independent  

Director 

None  9 10 1 IRB 

Infrastructure 

Developers 

Limited 

 



 

 

*Number of Directorship in other Companies excludes directorship in Section 8 Companies & Foreign 

Companies, if any. 

# While calculating directorships in listed entities, only directorships in equity listed companies have been 

considered in accordance with the explanation provided under Regulation 17A of SEBI Listing Regulations. 

** While calculating directorships in listed entities, only directorships in equity listed companies have been 

considered in accordance with the explanation provided under Regulation 17A of SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 

(iii) Board Meetings / Annual General Meeting  

 

For the period ended March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors of your Company met 10 (Ten) times on May 

4, 2022, August 1, 2022, August 10, 2022, August 30, 2022, September 9, 2022, October 17, 2022, 

November 10, 2022, January 25, 2023, March 20, 2023, March 31, 2023 

 

Further, no circular resolution was passed by the Board of Directors during the Financial Year 2022-23. 

 

The Annual General Meeting of the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022 was held on June 22, 2022. 

 

Details regarding the attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and the Annual General Meeting 

held during the period ended March 31, 2023, are provided in the following table: 

 

Director  No. of Board Meetings 

Attended 

Whether AGM Attended 

(Yes/No) 

Ms. Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar 10 Yes 

Mr. Abhay Prabhakar Phatak 10 Yes 

Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar 10 Yes 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Shankarrao 

Kaptan 

9 No 

  

(iv) A chart or a matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors  

 

Accordance with the company’s Corporate Governance philosophy, the Board has laid down criteria which 

guides selection of board member. The members of the Board of Directors of your Company are expected 

to possess the required expertise, skill and experience in the relevant sector to effectively manage and direct 

your Company to attain its organizational goals. 

 

The following is the list of core skills / competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the 

context of the Company’s business and that the said skills are available within the Board Members. 

 

Name of the 

Director 

Business 

Leadership 

Financial 

Expertise 

Knowledge of 

Company’s 

Business 

Corporate 

Governance and 

Risk Management 



 

 

Ms. Shilpa 

Todankar 

√ √ √ √ 

Mr. Abhay 

Phatak 

√ √ √ √ 

Mr. 

Chandrashekhar 

Kaptan 

√ √ √ √ 

Mr. Darshan 

Sangurdekar 

√ √ √ √ 

 

 

(v) Membership Term 

 

At every Annual General Meeting, one-third of the Directors excluding Independent Directors, for the time 

being are liable to retire by rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number 

nearest to one-third, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire by rotation at every Annual General 

Meeting shall be those who have been longest in office since their last appointment. However, as between 

persons who became Director on the same day and those who are to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree 

among themselves) be determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-appointment. 

  

(vi) Code of Conduct 

 

Your Company’s Board of Directors has prescribed a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and the 

Company’s Senior Management. The Code of Conduct is available on your Company’s website 

www.irbinfratrust.co.in  

 

All the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel of your Company have affirmed their 

compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2023. A declaration to this effect as 

signed by the Chief Executive Officer(s) is given below: 

 

This is to certify that, in line with the requirement of Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, all the Directors of the Board and Senior Management 

Personnel have solemnly affirmed that to the best of their knowledge and belief, they have complied with 

the provisions of the Code of Conduct during the financial year 2022-23. 

 

Sd/-                                                            

Jai Prakash Nandi 

(CEO)                                                         

  



 

 

(vii) Meeting of Independent Directors: 

 

The separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company as per the requirements of Schedule IV of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, was held on January 24, 2023, without the attendance of Non-

Independent Directors and the members of the management. All the Independent Directors were present at 

the meeting. 

 

(viii) Performance Evaluation of Directors: 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down the criteria for performance evaluation of 

Independent Directors and other Directors, Board of Directors and Committees of the Board of Directors 

pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The evaluation framework for assessing the performance 

of Directors comprises of the following key areas: 

 

i. Attendance at Board & Committee Meetings. 

ii. Quality of contributions in deliberations. 

iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance. 

iv. Providing perspectives and feedback going beyond information provided by the management. 

v. Commitment to Stakeholders interests. 

 

The evaluation involves Self- Evaluation by the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board 

of Directors. A member of the Board does not participate in the discussion of his / her evaluation. 

 

B. Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors: 

 

In case of appointment of new independent directors, the management provides the Familiarisation 

Programmes for all the Independent Directors as per the requirement of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The main objective of the Programme is to familiarize the 

Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the 

industry in which the Company operates, business model of the company, etc., through various 

programmes. During the year under review, no new independent Directors were appointed.  

 

 

C. BOARD COMMITTEES  

 

In compliance with both the mandatory and non-mandatory requirements under the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the applicable laws, your Company’s 

Board of Directors constituted the following Committees:  
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i) Audit Committee;  

ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee;  

iii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee;  

iv) Risk Management Committee; 

v) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee; 

 

The Chairman of the Board, in consultation with the Company Secretary and the respective Chairman of 

these Committees, determines the frequency of the meetings of these Committees. The recommendations 

of the Committees are submitted to the Board for approval. 

 

The Board of Directors has also adopted the following policies in line with the requirement of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013 for the 

effective and defined functioning of the respective Committees of the Board: 

 

 

a. Whistle Blower Policy;  

b. Remuneration Policy; 

c. Code for Corporate Disclosure; 

d. Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by 

Designated Persons; 

e. Policy on Related Party Transactions; 

f. Code of Conduct. 

 

Relevant policies are available on the website of the Company 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/yedeshi-aurangabad-tollway-limited/  

  

(i) Audit Committee  

 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company as on March 31, 2023 consists of the 

following Members:  

 

1) Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar 

2) Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 

3) Ms. Shilpa Todankar  

 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee. 

 

The composition, role, terms of reference as well as powers of the Audit Committee are in accordance with 

the Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/yedeshi-aurangabad-tollway-limited/


 

 

The brief terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as follows:  

 

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information 

to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

 

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company; 

 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before 

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 

 

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 

report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same  

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management 

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings 

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements  

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions 

g. Modified opinion(s)  in the draft audit report 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval; 

 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 

those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 

monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified 

institutions placement, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this 

matter; 

 

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 

 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  

 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;  

 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
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12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems; 

 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 

frequency of internal audit; 

 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

 

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there 

is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 

the matter to the board; 

 

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

 

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 

 

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading 

the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc. of the candidate; 

 

20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 

 

21. To review the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the 

subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crores or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower 

including existing loans / advances / investments; 

 

22. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benfits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, 

amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders. 

 

The Company’s Audit Committee met 7 (Seven) times for the period ended March 31, 2023 viz. May 4, 

2022; August 1, 2022; October 17, 2022; November 10, 2022 and January 25, 2023, March 20, 2023, March 

31, 2023. 

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Audit Committee meetings held during the 

period ended March 31, 2023: 

 

Yedeshl Aurangabod Tollway Umited 



 

 

Members  No. of Meetings Attended 

Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar 7 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 6 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 7 

 

 

(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 

The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) as on March 31, 2023 consists 

of the following members viz.: 

 

1) Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar 

2) Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 

3) Ms. Shilpa Todankar 

 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 (Two) time during the period ended March 31, 2023 

on May 4, 2022, November 10, 2022. 

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

meetings for the period ended March 31, 2023: 

 

Members No. of Meetings Attended 

Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar 2 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 1 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 2 

  

The brief terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:  

 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, 

key managerial personnel and other employees;  

 

2.  For every appointment of an independent director, evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and 

experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and 

capabilities required of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment 

as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of 

identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:  

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;  



 

 

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and  

c. consider the time commitments of the candidates. 

3.   Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of   

directors;  

4.   Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;  

5.  Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their 

appointment and removal.  

6. Review whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis 

of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.  

7. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management. 

 

Remuneration Policy 

 

The Board had adopted Nomination and Remuneration Policy which sets out the guidelines regarding the 

nomination, remuneration and removal of directors, key managerial personnel and employees of the 

Company.The Nomination & Remuneration Policy is annexed to Board’s Report. 

 

Remuneration paid to Non-executive Directors: 

 

The Non-executive Independent Directors of your Company are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees. 

Your Company pays sitting fees of Rs. 3,000/- per meeting to the Non-executive & Independent Directors 

for attending the meetings of the Committees and Board. 

 

Details of Remuneration for the period ended March 31, 2023 

 

Name of the Non-Executive &  Independent 

Directors  

Sitting Fee (Amounts in Rupees)  

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 77,880 

Mr. Abhay Phatak 46,020 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 63,720 

Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar 70,800 

 

As per the disclosures received from the Directors, none of the Company’s Non-Executive Independent 

Directors hold any Equity Shares of the Company. Further, there are no pecuniary relationships or 

transactions of the Directors with the Company, except those disclosed in the Annual Report. 

 



 

 

None of the Directors are entitled to any benefit upon termination of their association with your Company. 

Further, the Company doesn’t have any Employee Stock Option scheme.  

 

(iii) Stakeholders' Relationship Committee  

 

The Composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee as on March 31, 2023 consists of the 

following members viz.:  

  

1. Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar 

2. Ms. Shilpa Todankar 

3. Mr. Abhay Phatak 

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee met 1 (One) time for the period ended March 31, 2023 on 

January 25, 2023. 

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Stakeholders Relationship Committee meetings 

for the period ended March 31, 2023: 

 

Members No. of Meetings Attended 

Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar 1 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 1 

Mr. Abhay Phatak 1 

 

Further, no complaints from securityholders were outstanding at the beginning of the year or received 

during the year under review, hence, there was no complaint to be disposed of during the said period or 

remaining unresolved at the end of the year under review. 

 

The brief terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as follows:  

 

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to 

transfer/transmission of shares/ securities, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, 

Non-receipt of interest on debentures, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.  

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders/security holders.  

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services 

being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.  

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends/ non-receipt of interest and ensuring timely receipt of interest/ dividend 

warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders/ security holders of the company. 



 

 

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) 

 

The investor complaints are processed in a centralised web based complaints redress system. Your 

Company has been registered on SCORES and makes every effort to resolve all investor complaints 

received through SCORES or otherwise within the statutory time limit from the receipt of the complaint. 

 

During the year under review the company has not received any investor compliant. 

 

(iv) Risk Management Committee: 

 

The composition of the Risk Management Committee as on March 31, 2023 consists of the following 

members viz.: 

 

1. Ms. Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar 

2. Mr. Chandrashekhar Shankarrao Kaptan 

3. Mr. Abhay Prabhakar Phatak 

 

The Risk Management Committee meeting was held on January 25, 2023 and March 31, 2023 during the 

period ended March 31, 2023.  

 

The following table presents the details of attendance at the Risk Management Committee meetings held 

for period ended March 31, 2023. 

 

Members No. of Meetings Attended 

Ms. Shilpa Todankar 2 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaptan 2 

Mr. Abhay Phatak 2 

 

The brief terms of reference of Risk Management Committee are as follows: 

 

1. To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include: 

 

a) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the Company, 

in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related 

risks), information, cyber security risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee.  

b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified 

risks.  

c) Business continuity plan. 

 

2. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate 

risks associated with the business of the Company; 



 

 

 

3. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the 

adequacy of risk management systems; 

 

4. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering 

the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity; 

 

5. To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions, 

recommendations and actions to be taken; 

 

6. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject 

to review by the Risk Management Committee. 

 

 

D. GENERAL BODY MEETING  

 

Annual General Meeting 

 

Details of your Company’s last three Annual General Meetings are presented in the following table: 

Nature of Meeting  Date & Time  Venue  Details of Special Resolutions 

passed  

Sixth Annual 

General Meeting 

September 11, 2020 

 

Registered Office of 

the Company: Off 

No-11th Floor/1101 

Hiranandani 

Knowledge Park, 

Technology Street, 

Hill Side Avenue, 

Powai, Mumbai – 

400076, Opposite 

Hiranandani Hospital  

Approval for Increase in 

Borrowing Limits of the 

Company.  

Seventh Annual 

General Meeting 

July 20, 2021 

 

Through Video 

Conferencing 

(“VC”)/Other Audio 

Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

_ 



 

 

Eighth Annual 

General Meeting 

June 22, 2022 

 

Through Video 

Conferencing 

(“VC”)/Other Audio 

Visual Means 

(“OAVM”) 

_ 

 

Postal Ballot  

 

During the financial year 2022-23, no resolution were passed by the Company through Postal Ballot.  

 

E. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION  

 

1) The website https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/# consists of Disclosure/ filing w.r.t. to Company,, 

which provides comprehensive information to the investors. 

 

2) Quarterly and Annual Financial results are published in leading English viz. The Free Press Journal etc. 

The said results are also made available on the Company’s website 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/yedeshi-aurangabad-tollway-limited/  

  

3) The Company’s Annual Report is e-mailed to the Members of the Company and other stakeholders’ 

entitled thereto  whose email addresses are available with the depositories as per section 136 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 53 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and shall also be available on 

the Company’s website https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/yedeshi-aurangabad-tollway-

limited/  

 

4) presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts: Nil 

  

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/
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F. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION  

1. Annual General Meeting                    

Date, Time and Venue  July 26, 2023, 1.00p.m. through Video Conferencing 

2. Financial Year  Financial Year is April 1 to March 31 of the following year  

Quarterly results will be declared as per the following tentative schedule:  

Financial reporting for the quarter ending 

June 30, 2023 

Financial reporing for the half year ending 

September 30, 2023 

Financial reporting for the quarter ending 

December 31, 2023 

Financial reporting for the year ending March 

31, 2024 

First fortnight of August, 2023 

 

First fortnight of November, 2023 

 

First fortnight of February, 2024 

 

Sixty days of close of Financial Year 

3. Dates of Book Closure  Not Applicable 

4. Record date for Dividend declared  - 

5. Interim/Final Dividend  - 

6. Interim/Final Dividend Payment Date  Not Applicable 

7. Listing on Stock Exchanges & Payment of 

Listing Fees  

Your Company’s Debt securities are listed on:  

BSE Limited  

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001 

Your Company has paid the annual listing fee to the 

exchange. 

8. Stock Code   (i) Scrip Code: 974138 / ISIN: INE461R07017  

 (ii) Scrip Code: 974178 /ISIN: INE461R07025 

9. Registrars and Transfer Agents  KFin Technologies Ltd. (Formerly known as KFin 

Technologies Private Ltd.) 

  

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli 

Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad – 500 032.  

Tel.: 040 6716 1500; Fax: 040 67161500  

E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com 

10. Share Transfer System  Equity Shares of the Company are not listed on any Stock 

Exchange. Further, NCDs issued by the Company are in 

Demat form and hence, no physical debenture certificates 

were required to be delivered during the year under review. 

The Company obtains an annual certificate from Practicing 

Company Secretaries as per the requirement of regulation 

61(4) read with regulation 40(9) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations and the same is filed with BSE Limited and is 

also available on the website of the Company i.e  

mailto:einward.ris@kfintech.com


 

 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/yedeshi-

aurangabad-tollway-limited/   

11. Address for Correspondence  Ms Shilpa Todankar 

Director, 

Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park, 

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai – 

400076 

Tel No. 022 66404220 

Fax No.: 022 28573441 

Email: irbinfrastructuretrust@irb.co.in  

12. Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity  During the year under review and as on the date of this 

Report, all securities issued by the Company were held in  

Demat form. 

14. Investor Complaints to be addressed to  Registrars and Transfer Agents or Ms. Shilpa Todankar, 

Director of the Company, at the addresses mentioned earlier.  

15. Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or 

any Convertible Instruments, Conversion 

Date and likely impact on equity  

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or 

any Convertible Instruments.  

16. Plant Locations  The Company does not have any manufacturing plant.  

17. Details of Suspension of Securities from 

trading if any 

Not Applicable. 

18. performance in comparison to broad-

based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL 

Index etc- 

Not Applicable 

19. Debenture Trustees (for privately placed  

debentures): 

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited 

Address : 202, Maker Tower, ‘E’, 

Cuffe Parade, Colaba, Mumbai – 400005 

Email: corporate@sbicaptrustee.com 

Website: www.sbicaptrustee.com 

Contact No. 022 4302 5555 

Fax – 022 22040465 

20. Credit Rating: 

 

 

The details of credit rating are mentioned in the Board’s 

report of the Company. 
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G. DISCLOSURES  

 

i) Related Party Transactions  

 

There have been no materially significant related party transactions, pecuniary transactions or relationships 

between your Company and the Directors, management or relatives, except for those disclosed in the 

financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 and as reported in the Directors' Report in terms of 

requirement under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Policy for the policy on related party 

transaction is available on your Company’s website 

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/yedeshi-aurangabad-tollway-limited/#  

 

ii) Details of Non-Compliance, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity by stock exchange(s) 

or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last 

three years 

 

Other than the below mentioned details there has been no other non-compliance of any legal requirements 

nor have there been any strictures imposed by any Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on 

any matter related to Capital Markets during the last three years.  

 

i. BSE has levied a fine of 1,08,560/- inclusive of taxes. The Company has paid Rs. 34,220 inclusive of 

taxes and has given justification to BSE for not paying the balance amount. However, the Company 

has not received further response from BSE. Further, listed entity has appointed qualified Company 

Secretary w.e.f 10th November 2022. 

 

ii. BSE has levied a fine of 1,08,560/- inclusive of taxes. Since already having been complied, the 

Company has not paid any amount and has given justification to BSE for the same. The Listed entity 

has not received further response from the BSE. 

 

iii) Corporate Governance Report  

 

Your Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

iv) Commodity price risk or Foreign exchange risk and Hedging activities  

Disclosure with respect to commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities are not applicable to 

the Company as the Company is engaged into Infrastructure development. 

 

v) Policy for determining ‘Material’ subsidiaries  

https://www.irbinfratrust.co.in/home/index.php/yedeshi-aurangabad-tollway-limited/


 

 

During the year under review and as on the date of this Report, the Company did not have any 

subsidiary. 

vi)  Details of Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors 

are interested  

During the year under review, the Company has neither advanced nor received any funds in the 

nature of loans to/from the firms/companies in which directors are interested. 

 

vii) Whistle Blower Policy / Vigil Mechanism  

 

Your Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism (SPOC Policy) for directors, employees, vendors/ 

consultants to report genuine concerns and has widely circulated/ displayed for the information of the 

concern.   

 

We further confirm that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 

viii) Compliance with Mandatory Requirements 

 

Your Company has complied with all the mandatory corporate governance requirements under the Listing  

Regulations. 

 

ix) Certificate on Corporate Governance 

 

The Practicing Company Secretary’s certificate, with respect to compliance with Regulation 17 to 27 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 relating to Corporate 

Governance, has been annexed to the Boards Report and will be sent to the Stock Exchanges at the time of 

filing the Company’s Annual Report. 

 

x) Compliance Certificate 

 

As per Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

a Compliance Certificate from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, on the Financial 

Statements and other matters of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, was placed 

before the Board. 

 

xi) Risk Management 

 

The Company has laid down procedures to inform Board Members about the Risk Assessment and 

minimisation procedure, which are periodically reviewed by the Board. 
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xii) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

 

As disclosed in the Board’s Report of the Company, during the year under review, the Company has not 

received any complaint of sexual harassment. 

 

xiii) Fees paid to Statutory Auditors  

 

Total fees of Rs. 357,540/-Million for financial year 2022-23, for all services, was paid by the Company.  

 

xiv) Corporate Governance Requirements 

 

The Company has complied with Corporate Governance Requirements specified under Regulation 17 to 27 

and required disclosures under Regulation 62 is also available on your Company’s website: 

www.irbinfratrust.co.in 

 

xv) Certificate from Company Secretary in practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company 

have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 

Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

 

As per provisions of Listing Regulations, M/s. Kaushal Dalal & Associates, Company Secretaries, has 

issued a certificate confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred 

or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the Board/Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The Certificate is enclosed as Annexure A. 

 

 

xvi) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON MARCH 31, 2023 

Sr. Description 

No.  

No. of Shares % of Shareholding 

1. IRB Infrastructure Trust# 215,756,995 99.99 

2. Mr. Dhananjay K. Joshi (Nominee of IRB 

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

3. Mr. Shailesh Joshi (Nominee of IRB 

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

4. Mr. Mahesh Kavthekar (Nominee of IRB 

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

5. Mr. Nikhil Maniar (Nominee of IRB 

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

6.   Mrs. Arati Taskar (Nominee of IRB 

Infrastructure Trust) 

1 Less Than 0.01 

7. Mrs. Anushree Joshi (Nominee of  IRB 1 Less Than 0.01 



 

 

Infrastructure Trust) 

Total 215,757,001 100.00 

*shares held by IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited as Registered Owner for and on behalf of IRB 

Infrastructure Trust, the Beneficial Owner. 

 

 

The Company has complied following Non-mandatory requirements as specified in Part E of 

Schedule II. 

 

 

A. Modified opinion(s) in audit report  

 

During the year under review, there is no audit qualification on the Company’s financial statements. 

The Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure regime of unmodified audit opinion. 

 

B. Reporting of internal auditor  

 

The Internal Auditor’s report to the Audit Committee of the Company. They participate in the meetings 

of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company and present their internal audit 

observations to the Audit Committee. 

 

  



 

 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  

Powai, Mumbai:- 400076  

 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Yedeshi Aurangabad 

Tollway Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on March 31, 2023, as stipulated in Regulations 17 

to 27 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“listing regulations”) 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and 

representations made by the management, we certify that the Company, being a High Value Debt Listed 

Entity has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and 

Para C, D and E of Schedule V of Listing Regulations on Comply and Explain basis and is in the process 

of full compliance.  

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 

examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 

ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 

expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.  

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

Date: 30/06/2023 

Place: Mumbai 

For MMJB & Associates LLP 

Company Secretaries 

Deepti Joshi  

Designated Partner 

FCS: 8167 

CP: 8968 

PR: 2826/2022 

UDIN: F008167E000528192 

Yedeshl Aurangabod Tollway Umited 



 

 

Annexure A 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Members of 

YEDESHI AURANGABAD TOLLWAY LIMITED 

Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge Park,  

Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue,  

Powai, Mumbai-400076 

 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors 

of Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”) having CIN: 

U45300MH2014PLC255280 and registered office at Off No-11th Floor/1101 Hiranandani Knowledge 

Park, Technology Street, Hill Side Avenue, Powai, Mumbai-400076, produced before me by the 

Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 

10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 

explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors 

on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2023 have 

been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory 

Authorities.  

 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in 

Company 

1 Chandrashekhar Shankarrao 

Kaptan 

01643564 26/02/2020 

2 Darshan Suryakant Sangurdekar 07139838 26/02/2020 

3 Shilpa Chandrashekhar Todankar 08683910 26/02/2020 

4 Abhay Prabhakar Phatak 09519500  09/03/2022 

 

  



 

 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 

of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my 

verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

For Kaushal Dalal & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

 

 

 

Kaushal Dalal 

Proprietor 

M. No: 7141 

CP No: 7512 

UDIN: F007141E000525331 

Date: 30/06/ 2023                               

Place: Mumbai                                              

                                               

 

 

 

 

 

 



ml(PS & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To, 

The Members ofYedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
iformally known as Yedeshi Aurangabad Private Tollway Limited) 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ofYedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
(formally known as Yedeshi Aurangabad Private Tollway Limited) (lithe Company"), which 
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023 
and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by leAl and 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 

Key Audit Matters - SA 701 

Sr. Key Audit 
No. Matters Thought Process Remarks Reference 
1 Revenue a) Toll Collection Toll Collection Refer Note 3.04 

Recognition The income from Toll collection is for the year for the 
recognised on the actual collection of ended 2022-23 Companies 
toll revenue, , net of revenue share was Rs. 2555.29 Revenue 
paid to NHAI as per the Concession million. Recognition in 
Agreement. the Significant 

Accounting 
~ 

(~ 
r\ Policies 

• FRN 
" 

b) Contract Revenue Contract Refer Note 3.04 

~ / 
Contract revenue associated with the Revenue for the 
utility shifting incidental to Collection for Companies --- construction of road are recognized the year ended Revenue 
as revenue by reference to the stage Recognition in 

Unrt No 122, 1st Floor, Nahar & Seth Industnal Estate, Cardinal GracIous Rd, Chakala, Andhen (E), Mumba1 400099. 
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2 Amortisation 
of Intangible 
Assets 

of completion of the projects at the 
balance sheet date. The stage of 
completion of project is determined 
by the proportion that contract cost 
incurred for work performed up to 
the balance sheet date bears to the 
estimated total contract costs. 
The Companies operations involve 
levying of GST on the construction 
work. Goods and Service tax is not 
received by the Company on its own 
account, rather, it is tax collected on 
value added to the commodity by the 
seller on behalf of the government. 
Accordingly, it is excluded from 
revenue. 

Amortisation 
The intangible assets which are 
recognised in the form of Right to 
charge users of the infrastructure 
asset are amortised by taking 
proportionate of actual revenue 
received for the year over Total 
Projected Revenue from project to 
Cost of Intangible assets. The 
estimation of total projection revenue 
requires significant assumption about 
expected growth rate and traffic 
projection for future. All assumptions 
are reviewed at each reporting date. 
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2022-23 was the Significant 
Rs.44.64 million. Accounting 

Policies 

Companies Refer Note 3.06 
Impairment for the 
charge on Companies 
Intangible Amortisation of 
Assets Intangible 
represented Rs. Assets in the 
559.99 million Significant 
for the year Accounting 
ended Policies 
31.03.2023 

Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including 
Annexures to Board's Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Business Responsibility 

ort and Report on Corporate Governance but does not include the financial statements and 
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our auditors' report thereon. The above-referred information is expected to be made available to 
us after the date of this audit report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. 

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, 
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take 
appropriate actions necessitated by the circumstances and the applicable laws and regulations. 
We have nothing to report on this. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Financial Statements 

O\lr objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in spe circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the IndAS Financial Statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 
user of the Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality 
and qualitative factors in: 

i. planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 

ii. to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (lithe Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act), we give in Annexure - I a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order to the extent applicable. 

~ 
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As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the statement of cash flows dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply, in material respect, with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in Annexure II. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended we reportthat, according 
to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the company, we report that the amount of managerial remuneration paid / 
provided by the company to its directors (including sitting fees) is in accordance with the 
provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have an 
impact on its financial position; 

ii) Based on the assessment made by the company, there are no material 
foreseeable losses on its long term contracts that may require any 
provisioning 

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit, the 
reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

iv) A) The management has represented that, to the best ofits knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind offunds) 
by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
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B) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds have been received by the company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that 
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and 
(ii) of Rule 11 (e) as provided under (A) and (B) above contain any 
material misstatement. 

v) The company has neither declared nor paid any dividends during the year 
under audit. 

vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for 
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the 
Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting 
under Rule l1(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not 
applicable for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023. 

For MKPS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: -302014E 

CA Vasudev Sunderdas Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.:046953 
UDIN:23046953BGYNJT5353 
Date: 28/04/2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure - I to the Independent Auditors Report 
Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway 
Limited (formally known as Yedeshi Aurangabad Private Tollway Limited) for the year 
ended March 31, 2023 

i) (a) (A) In view of there being no property, plant and equipment, the reporting under 
this sub-clause is not applicable. 
(8) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its 
intangible assets. 

(b) The property, plant and equipment of the company have been physically verified 
by the management at regular intervals, which in our opinion is reasonable 
considering the size of the company and the nature of its property, plant and 
equipment. No material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification 
during the year. 

(c) There are no immovable properties disclosed in the accompanying financial 
statements. Hence, the reporting requirements under sub-clause (c) of clause (i) of 
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

(d) The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment and 
Intangible assets during the year. 

(c) According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the company, we report that no proceedings have 
been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 
2022 for holding any benami property under the 8enami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

ii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements under 
sub-clause (a) of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

(b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or 
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence the 
reporting requirements under sub-clause (b) of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the 
order are not applicable. 

iii) According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the company, we report that the company has not made any 
investments in, nor provided any guarantee or security nor granted any loans or advances 
in the nature of loans, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other 
parties. Hence, the reporting requirements under clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order 
are not applicable. 

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not advanced any loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is 
interested to which the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply other than those stated 
at para (iii) above. Further, based on the information and explanations given to us, being 
an infrastructure company, the provisions of section 186 of the Act to the extent of loans, 
guarantees and securities granted are not applicable to the company. Hence, the reporting 
requirements under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 



RlKPS & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, the 
directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the 
Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable. 

vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under 
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such 
records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been made 
and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with 
a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

vii) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and 
based on our examination of the books of the company, the company is generally 
regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Goods and 
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, and any 
other material statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. 
There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, and any other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory 
dues referred to in clause (a) above which have not been deposited on account of 
any dispute. 

viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
are no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961. 

ix) 

x) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

(a) 

According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the 
books of accounts and records examined by us, in our opinion, the company 
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender. 
According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented 
to us by the management, the company has not been declared as a wilful 
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
no fresh term loans have been taken during the year. 
On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our 
opinion, funds raised on short term basis have not been prima-facie used for 
long term purposes during the year. 
The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and 
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (e) of clause (ix) of 
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 
The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and 
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (f) of clause (ix) of 
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on 
our examination of the books of accounts and other records, we report that 
the company has not raised any moneys raised by way of initial public offer 
or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, 
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the reporting requirements under sub-clause (a) of clause (x) of paragraph 3 
of the order are not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on 
our examination of the books of accounts and other records, we report that 
the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 
of shares or debentures. Hence, the compliance to the provision of section 42 
and section 62 of the Act are not applicable. 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting 
the true and fair view of the financial statements and as per the information 
and explanations given to us by the management, we report that we have 
neither come across any instance of fraud by the company or on the company 
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we 
been informed of any such case by the management. 
No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has 
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year and 
till the date of this report. 
According to the information and explanations provided to us, no whistle 
blower complaints have been received during the year and upto the date of 
this report. 

xii) The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under 
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered 
into by the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 
of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv) a) 

b) 

In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and nature of its business. 
We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued 
to the company, in determining the nature, timing and extent of audit 
procedures. 

xv) As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them and 
hence the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the company. 

xvi) a) 

b) 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India, 1934. Hence, the reporting requirements under sub­
clause (a), (b) and (c) of clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not 
applicable. 
According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, 
in our opinion, there is no Core Investment Company as part of the Group. 
Hence, the reporting requirements under sub-clause (d) of clause (xvi) of 
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

xvii) The company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 446.02 Million & Rs. 424.11 Million in 
the current and the immediately preceding year respectively. 

xviii) ~ ere has been no resignation of statutory auditors during the year. 
'/ . 
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xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 
as on the date of the audit report indicating that the company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this 
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts upto the date of the audit report and we neither give 
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one 
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when 
they fall due. 

xx) The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the company for the 
year under audit and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (a) & (b) of 
clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

For MKPS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: -302014E 

CA Vasudev Sunderdas Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.:046953 
UDIN:23046953BGYNJT5353 
Date: 28/04/2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure - II to the Independent Auditors Report 
Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway 
Limited (formally known as Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited) for the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Yedeshi Aurangabad 
Tollway Limited (formally known as Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited) ("the Company") as 
of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (lCAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and 
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For MKPS & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: -302014E 

CA Vasudev Sunderdas Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.:046953 
UDIN:23046953BGYNJT5353 
Date: 28/04/2023 
Place: Mumbai 
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(1) 

(2) 

II 

(1) 

(2) 

Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 

ASSETS 
NOli-current assets 
Other intangible assets 
Financial assets 
i) Other financial assets 

Current assets 
Financial assets 

i) Trade receivables 
ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above 
iv) Other financial assets 
Currenl tax assets (net) 
Olher current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity share capital 
Subordinate debt 
Other equity 

Non-current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 
i) Borrowings 

ii) Other financial liabilities 
Provisions 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Notcl'\o. 

4 
5 

5.1 

6 
6.1 
6.2 
6.3 
6.4 
7 
8 

9 
10 
II 

12 
12.1 
12.2 

13 

14 
i) Borrowings 14.1 
Ii) Trade payables 14.2 

a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

iii) Other financial liabilities 14.3 
Other liabilities 15 

Total liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Summary nr ignifi cMI ncc\lullting policlcs 3 
The accompanying notes are an integral part or the financial statements. 

Asat 
March 31, 2023 

34.681.87 

0.25 
34,682.12 

0.49 
237.15 

1,520.00 
94.43 

5.78 
23.38 

1,881.23 

36,563.35 

2,157.57 
16,319.79 
(3,061.27) 
15,416.09 

18,884.65 

280.23 
19.164.88 

1.172 97 

1.50 
568.99 
23719 

1.73 
1.982.38 

21,147.26 

36,563.35 

As per our report of even date 
For M K P S & Associates 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Yedeshi Aurnngabad Tollway Limited 

Partner 
Membership No 046953 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04 2023 

CIN: U45300MH2014PLC2552BO 

~, 
Dlreclor 
DlN: 095 19500 

Date: 28 ,04,2023 

~~~ 
wnti hnllllckll!' 

Company Secretary 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04.2023 

Date: 28 04 2023 

~ 
Devendra Rank" 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04.2023 

( 'f in Millions) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

35,241 86 

0.25 
35,242.11 

0.49 
73.50 

451.69 
78.86 

3.99 
2693 

635.47 

35,877.58 

2,157.57 
16,319.79 
(2,796~ 

15,680.80 

17,713.43 
1.26 

154.00 
17.1168.69 

1,48419 

1.50 
602.54 
23971 

015 
2,328.09 

20,196.78 

35,877.58 

Date: 28.04.2023 



Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31 , 2023 

Income 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 
TOTAL INCOME 

Expenses 
Road work and site expenses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Other expenses 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

Profit / (loss) before tax 

Tax expenses 
Current tax 
TOTAL TAX EXPENSES 

Profit/(Ioss) for the year 

Other comprehensive income 
Item that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss: 
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of taxes) 
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods 

Other comprehensive income/(Ioss) for the year (net of tax) 
Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share (of Rs. 10 each) 
Basic 
Diluted 

Summary of signi Ii can l accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 
For M K P S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Regd. NO.302014E 

CA. Vasudev Sunderdas Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.046953 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 28 .04.2023 

Note No. 

16 
17 

18 
19 
20 
21 

22 

23 

3 

Year ended March 
31,2023 

2,579.80 
57.99 

2,637.79 

365.77 
1,903.05 

559.99 
73.69 

2,902.50 

(264.71) 

(0.00) 
(0.00) 

(264.7 1) 

(264.71) 

( 1.23) 
( 1.23) 

( f in Millions) 

Year ended March 31, 
2022 

1,584.73 
17.39 

1,602.12 

333.16 
1,796.93 

305.02 
3.97 

2,439.08 

(836.96) 

(2.07) 
(2.07) 

(834.88) 

(834.88) 

(3 .87) 
(3.87) 

For and on behalf ofthe Board of Directors of 
Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
CIN: U45300MH2014PLC255280 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 28.04.2023 

@r9~ 
S' V:I hlllHJeknr 
Company Secretary 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 28.04.2023 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28 .04.2023 

~" 
Director 
DIN: 08683910 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 28.04.2023 

II~ 
lief Executive Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 28.04.2023 



Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 

A. Equity Share Capital: 

Equity shares off 10 each issued. subscribed and fully paid 

Opening balance 
Issue of share capital 
Closing balance 

B. Subordinated debt: 
Opening balance 
Addition during the period! year 
Closing balance 

C .Other Equity: 
Retained earnings 
Opening balance 
Profit/(loss) for the period! year 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 
At the end of the year 

Summary of Significant accounting policies 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 
For M K P S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration NoJ020 14 

Partner 
Membership No.046953 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04.2023 

3 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

2,157.57 

2,157.57 

16,319.79 

16,319.79 

(2,796.56) 
(264.71) 

(3,061.27) 

( ~ in Millions) 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

2,157.57 

2,157.57 

16,319.79 

16,319.79 

(1,961.66) 
(834.88) 

(2,796.56) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 

CIN: U45300MH20 14PLC255280 

~ 
Abhay Phnls," 
Director 
DIN: 095 19500 

Date: 28.04.2023 

~ 
Swati Chandekar 
Company Secretary 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04.2023 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04.2023 

~"'" Director 
DIN: 08683910 

Date: 28.04.2023 

~.k' 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04.2023 



Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit Before Tax 
Adjustments: 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Resurfacing expenses 
Finance costs 
Fair Value gain on Mutual Funds 
(Gain) / loss on sale of Investment 
Interest Income on 
- Bank deposits 
- Others 

Partriculars 

Operating PI'ollt/(loss) before working capital changes 
Movement in working capital: 
Decrease/(increase) in Trade receivables 
Decreasel(increase) in others financial assets 
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 
Increase/( decrease) in other financial liabilities 
Increase/( decrease) in other liabilities 
Increase/(dccrease) in provisions 
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (A) 

B. Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including CWIP, intangible assets 
including intangible assets under development and capital advances 
Proceeds from sale/ (purchase) of current investments (net) 
Bank deposits placed (having original maturity of more than three months) 
Interest received 
Net cash flows from/(usel! in) investing activities (B) 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 
Proceeds from Issue of Non Convertible Debentures 
Proceeds / repayment of loan from banks and financial institution 
(Repayment) ofloan from banks and financial institution 
Proceeds / (repayment) of short term loan 
Finance cost paid 
Transaction cost towards issue of Non Convertible Debenture 
Net cash flows rrom/(uscd in) financing activities ( ) 
Net incl'cose/(clecrcnse) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (refer note 6.2) 

Components of cash anel cash equivalents 
Cash on hand 
Balances with scheduled banks 

- On Current Account 
Total Cash and cash equivalents (refel' note 6.2) 

Year ended March 
31,2023 

(264.71) 

559.98 
126.23 

1,903.05 

(5.21) 

(52.45) 
(0.25) 

2,266.64 

(15.57) 
3.55 

(33.54) 
(2.53) 
1.58 

2.220.13 
(1.79) 

2,218.34 

(0.00) 
5.21 

(1,068.31) 
52.69 

(1.010.41) 

15,150.00 

(13,848.94) 
2.50 

(2,082.51) 
(265.35) 

(1,044.28) 
163.65 

73.50 
237.15 

1.11 

236.04 
237.15 

( ~ in Millions) 

Year ended March 31, 
2022 

(836.96) 

305.02 
107.82 

1,796.93 
0.00 

(1.24) 

(15.48) 
(0.62) 

1,355.47 

10.95 
30.06 
22.77 
25.04 

(301.93) 
(11.52) 

1,130.83 
(2.06) 

1.128.77 

0.14 
12.24 

(24.19) 
8.51 

(3.29) 

(29.98) 

148.50 
(1,296.46) 

(1,177.94) 
(52.46) 
125.96 
73.50 

0.81 

72.70 
73.50 



Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Partriculars 

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with lnd AS 7 
Opening balances 
Long term borrowings 
Short term borrowings 

Movements 
Long term borrowings 
Short term borrowings 

Closing balances 
Long term borrowings 
Short term borrowings 

As per our report of even date 
For M K P S & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Regd. NO.302014E 

CA. Vasudev Sunderdas Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.046953 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04.2023 

Year ended March 
31,2023 

17,713.43 
1,484.19 

1,171.23 
(311.22) 

18,884.65 
1,172.97 

( ~ in Millions) 

Year ended March 31, 
2022 

17,905.10 
1,004.59 

(191.69) 
479.59 

17,713.43 
1,484.19 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
CIN: U45300MH2014PLC255280 

~ 
Director 
DIN: 09519500 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04.2023 

~ 
Swati hlllldcl<lli' 
Company Secretary 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04.2023 

1~;ldi 
h ie r<X;~;I;i~~ Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 28.04.2023 

hill)ll Todllll lulr 
Director 
DIN: 08683910 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04.2023 

#2.R"ka 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04.2023 



Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Notel: Corporate Inrormation 
Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited (the company) is a company incorporated on May 17, 2014 under Companies Act, 2013. The company has been 
awarded the contract offour lanning ofYedeshi to Aurangabad section ofNH-211 from km 100.000 to km 290.200 in the State of Maharashtra under NHDP 
Phase IVB on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT)Toll basis, including collection and retention of the toll or fee and to carry out the 
ancillary activities, in relation of the foregoing, as specified in the Concession Agreement to be executed with National Highways Authority of India 
(NHAI).During the year effective from September 24, 2020 the COD for the full stretch has been received and accordingly the consequent impact on cost of 
assets, finance cost etc. has been considered 

The Company has been converted to Public Limited Company from Private Limited Company with effect from 13th November, 2019. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 28.04.2023 

The registered office is located at 110 I. II th Floor, Hiranandani Knowledge Park, Technology Street, Opp Hiranandani Hospital, Powai, Mumbai - 400 076. 

IRB Infrastructure Trust [an Infrastructure Investment Trust registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India under Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014] holds through its Trustee IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited and its nominees 100% stake in the 
Company 

Note 2: Basis of preparation 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee CINR') which is also the Company's functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest 
millions, except when otherwise indicated. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding 
financial instruments) which have been measured at fair value , 

Note 3 : Summary of significant accounting policies 

3.01 Current versus non-current classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified 
twelve months as its operating cycle. 

3.02 Fair value measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

> In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

> In the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest. 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its 
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising 
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as 
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable 



Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Morch 31. 2023 

For assets and liabilities that arc recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred 
between levels in the hierarchy by re·assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at 
the end of each reporting period. 

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and un quoted 
financial assets measured at fair value, and for non· recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations. 

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re·assessed as 
per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information 
in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents 

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is 
reasonable. 

On an interim basis, the Management present the valuation results to the Audit Committee and the Company's independent auditors. This includes a 
discussion of the major assumptions used in the valuations. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the 
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

This note summaries accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes. 

3.03 Significant accounting Judgements. estimates and assumption 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years. 

Estimates and assumptions 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimates 
are revised and future periods are affected. 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below The Company based its assumptions 
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared , Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the 
assumptions when they occur. 

Material Estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are: 
Fair value measurement of financial instruments (refer note 26) 

Current / Deferred tax expense (refer note 22) 

Revenue recognition based on percentage of completion (refer note 16) 

3.04 Revenue recognition 
The Company has adopted Ind AS liS, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, with effect from 01 April 2018. The Company has applied the following 
accounting policy for revenue recognition: 

Revenue from controcts with customers: 
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115: 
Step I. Identify the contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and 
obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met. 

Step 2. IdentifY the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service 
to the customer. 

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf ofthird parties. 

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the perfonnance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the 
Company will allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company 
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation. 

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. 

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met: 
I The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's performance as the Company performs; or 
2. The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or 
3, The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance 
completed to date. 



Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limiled 
Noles 10 Financial Sialemenis for the year ended March 31,2023 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment. 

Toll revenue 
The income from Toll collection is recognised on the actual collection of toll revenue" net of revenue share paid to NHAI as per the Concession Agreement. 

Contract revenue 
Contract revenue associated with the utility shifting incidental to construction of road are recognized as revenue by reference to the stage of completion of the 
projects at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion of project is determined by the proportion that contract cost incurred for work performed up to the 
balance sheet date bears to the estimated total contract costs 
The Companies operations involve levying of GST on the construction work. Goods and Service tax is not received by the Company on its own account, 
rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue. 

Interest income 

Financial instruments which are measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the 
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial 
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When 
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for 
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

Significant financing component 

Generally, the Company receives short·term advances from its Holding Company Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust 
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the 
transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less. 

Non-cash consideration 
The Company applies the requirements of Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement in measuring the fair value of the non- cash consideration. If the fair value 
cannot be reasonably estimated, the non·cash consideration is measured indirectly by reference to the stand·alone selling price of the EPC contract revenue 

Contract balances 

Contract assets 

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the 
consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (t) Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement. 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of 
the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (t) Financial instruments - initial recognilion and subsequent measurement. 

Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of 
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is 
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier) Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Comnpany performs 
under the contract. 

3.05 Taxes 
Current income tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the arnounl are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and 
generates taxable income. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in GCI or directly in equity . Management periodically evaluates positions 
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 
When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at 
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be util ised, except: 

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference ari ses from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is 
not a business combination nn of the transaction. affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 



Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and 
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based 
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity) 
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax as sets against current tax liabilities and the 
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid as per Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 is in the nature of unused tax credit which can be carried forward and utilised when 
the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Deferred tax assets on such tax credit is recognised to the extent that it is probable that 
the unused tax credit can be utilised in the specified future period. The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as 
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet At each Balance Sheet date,the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement receivable is reviewed to 
reassure realisation. 

3.06 Intangible assets 
Under the Concession Agreements, where the Company has received the right to charge users of the public service, such rights are recognised and classified as 
"Intangible Assets". Such right is not an unconditional right to receive consideration because the amounts are contingent to the extent that the public uses the 
service and thus are recognised and classified as intangible assets. Such an intangible asset is recognised by the Company at cost (which is the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered) and is capitalized when the project is complete in all respects and when the 
companies receives the completion certificate from the authority as specified in the Concession Agreement. 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost The cost of intangible assets acquired is their fair value at the date of 
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the 
period in which the expenditure is incurred. 

The Company exercised first time adoption exemption under Ind AS 101 and has elected to continue with the carrying value of its "Toll Collection Rights" 
(Intangible assets under development), as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition measured as per the previous GAAP and uses that as 
its deemed cost as at date of transition. 

Toll Collection Rights 
Toll collection rights are stated at cost net of accumulated amortisation and impairment losses Cost includes: 

Toll Collection Rights awarded by the grantor against construction service rendered by the company on DBFOT basis - Direct and indirect expenses on 
construction of roads, bridges, culverts, infrastructure and other assets at the toll plazas. 

Toll Collection Rights are amortised over the period of concession, using revenue based amortisation as prescribed in Ind AS 38. Under this method, the 
carrying value of the rights is amortised in the proportion of actual toll revenue for the year to projected revenue for the balance toll period, to reflect the 
pattern in which the assets economic benefits will be consumed. At each balance sheet date, the projected revenue for the balance toll period is reviewed by 
the management. If there is any change in the projected revenue from previous estimates, the amortisation of toll collection rights is changed prospectively to 
reflect any changes in the estimates. 

Amortisation of InlanRible Assets 
The intangible assets which are recognised in the form of Right to charge users of the infrastructure asset are amortised by taking proportionate of actual 
revenue received for the year over Total Projected Revenue from project to Cost of Intangible assets. The estimation of total projection revenue requires 
significant assumption about expected growth rate and traffic projection for future . All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

3.07 Resurfacing Expenses 
The Company has an obligation to maintain its roads they operate and hence in additon to routine maintainance expenses, periodic maintanance of roads is 
required to be carried out. Provison is made for the planned expenditure for the period, at the end of which resurfacing would be required, out of the total 
entitled period by the management 

3.08 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs includes interest and amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. 

3.09 Contingent liabilities 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 
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3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or 
cash-generating unit's (CGUl fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset. unless the asset 
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are di scounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken 
into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, 
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators 

3.11 Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The 
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to 
the liability When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each 
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

3.12 Cash support (grant) from grantor 
Grant received are considered as a part of total outlay of the construction project. The same shall be recognize when the entity complies with the conditions 
attaching to collection of grant considered as a financial asset and it shall be simultaneously reduce from the cost of acquisition of the intangible asset and are 
recognised. 

3.13 Financial instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity 

Financial assets 

[nl/ial recognition WId measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs 
that are attributable to the acquisition of the !Inancial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e , the date that the Company commits to 
purchase or sell the asset. 

Subsequerrt measuremerrt 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories; 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 
Debt instmments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPLl 

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Loa1ls a1ld borrowlllgs 
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the EIR method. However, the company has borrowings at 1I0ating rates. Considering that the impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year 
on year due to reset of interest rate, is not material and hence the company is amortising the transaction cost in straight line basis over the tenure of the 
concession period. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the transaction cost amortisation 
process. This category generally applies to borrowings 

DerecogllWolI 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i e. removed 
from the Company's balance sheet) when: 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without 
material lay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what 
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, 
nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that 
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that the Company has retained. 
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Impairmellt of fillal/cial assets 

Trade receivable: 
The company Management has evaluated the impairment provision requirement under IND As 109 and has listed down below major facts for trade and other 
receivables impairment provisioning: 

Trade receivables majority pertain to Government receivables Hence there is no major risk of bad debts. 

Other Financial Assets: 
Other Financial Assets mainly consists of Loans to employees and Security Deposit and other deposits, interest accrued on Fixed Deposits, loans to related 
party, Bank Guarantee Margin receivable from related party, Retention money receivable from NHAI, Grant receivable from NHAI and other receivables and 
advances measured at amortized cost. 
Following are the policy for specific financial assets:-

Type of financial asset 

Security Deposit 
Security deposit is in the nature of statutory deposits like electricity, telephone deposits. Since they are kept with 
Government bodies, there is low risk. 

Loans! Bank guarantee to related party 
Loan! Bank Guarantee to group companies are considered to be good and there are neither been any past 
instances of default and also management doesn't expect any default in case of group receivables 

Retention money I Grulll receivable Retention moncyl gmnlll1nj orly pcrtnin to Oovernm~n t reoelvnbles. Hence thero Is 110 Inajor risk of bad debts. 

Impairment of financial assets 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following 
financial assets and credit risk exposure 

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amorti sed cost e.g, loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FYTOCI 
c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17 
d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 
11 and Ind AS 18 (referred to as 'contractual revenue receivables' in these illustrative financial statements) 

e) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL 
t) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FYTPL 

The company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase! 
origination. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income! expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L) This 
amount is reflected under the head ' other expenses' in the P&L. 

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and other contractual revenue receivables- ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the 
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the group does not 
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

Financial assets measured at FYTOCI - Financial assets that are debt instruments are measured at FYTOCI. ECL amount is presented as 'accumulated 
impairment amount' in the OCI. 

Finaneialliabilities 

/Ililial recogllitloll al/(/measuremellt 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables and 
other payables. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans Dnd borrowings including bank overdrafts and other payables. 

Subsequent measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Finaneialliabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as 
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near tenn . 
This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as 
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments 

Loa/IS alld borrowillgs 
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the EIR method. However, the company has borrowings at floating rates, Considering that the impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year 
on year due to reset of interest rate, is not material and hence the company is amortising the transaction cost in straight line basis over the tenure of the loan. 
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the transaction cost amortisation process. 

This category generally applies to borrowings. 
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Derecognilioll 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires . When an existing financial liability is 
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carl)ling amounts 
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Reclassification of financial assets 
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for 
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities, For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is 
a change in the business model for managing those assets, Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior management 
determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such changes are 
evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its 
operations If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the 
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including 
impairment gains or losses) or interest 

The rollowmg tnble shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for: 
Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment 

Amortised cost FVTPL 
Fair value is measured at reclassification date Difference between previous 
amortized cost and fair value is recognised in P&L. 

FVTPL Amortised cost 
Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carl)ling amount. EIR is 
calculated based on the new gross carrying amount 

Amortised cost FVTOCI 
Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortised 
cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to reclassification 

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost carl)ling amount. 
FVTOCI Amortised cost However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the 

asset is measured as if it had always been measured at amortised cost. 

FVTPL FVTOCI 
Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carl)ling amount. No other adjustment 
is required. 

FVTOCI FVTPL 
Assets continue to be measured fair value. Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized 
in OCI is reclassified to P&L at the reclassification date. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

3. 14 Impairment of financial assets 
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments 
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. 
For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime 
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

3.15 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank 
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

3.16 Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

3.17 Segment information 
The Company is engaged in "Road Infrastructure Projects" which in the context of Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments is considered as the only segment. The 
Company's activities are restricted within India and hence no separate geographical segment disclosure is considered necessal)l. 
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Note 4 : Other Intangible assets 
( ~ in Millions) 

Toll Collection Rights 

Particulars As at March As at March 
31,2023 31,2022 

Gross block 
Opening balance 36,111.55 36,111.55 
Additions - -
Less: Deductions/adjustments - -
Closing balance 36,111.55 36,111.55 

DeP"eciation / Amortisation 
Opening balance 869.69 564.67 
Additions 559.99 305.02 
Less: Deductions/adjustments - -
Closing balance 1,429.68 869.69 

Net block 34,681.87 35,241.86 

Tangible & Intangible assets are subject to first charge to secured long term borrowing from the lenders. 



Ycdcshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements fOI' the year ended March 31, 2023 

5.1 Other financial assets 
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) 
Security and other deposits 

Note 6: Financial assets (current) 

6.1 Trade I'eceivable 
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 
-others 

6.2 Cash and cash equivalent 
Cash on hand 
Balances with banks: 
- In current accounts 

6.3 Other bank balances 
Debt service reserve account with banks learmarked balance 
- Maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 month 

Major maintainance reserve account with banks I earmarked balance 
- Maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 month 
D eposits wi lh blln k.~ 

- Original maturity more than 3 but less than 12 months 

Debt service reserve account! major maintenance reserve account and trust, 
retention and other escrow accounts. 

As at March 
31 , 2023 

0.25 
0.25 

0.49 
0.49 

l.ll 

236.04 
237.15 

650.00 

870.00 

1.520.00 

( ~ in Millions) 

As at March 31, 
2022 

0.25 
0.25 

0.49 
0.49 

0.81 

72.70 
73.50 

417.00 

34.69 
451.69 

Bank deposits are marked lien I pledged against the non current secured loan as per term loan agreement with the lender, further the 
lenders have first charge on trust, retention and other escrow accounts. 

6.4 Othel' financial assets 
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 13.58 
Interest receivable from others 
- from NHAI & others 76.23 57.92 
Other receivable 
- other parties 9.81 7.36 
Balance with government authorities 8.39 

94.43 78.86 

Note 7 : Current tax assets (net) 
Advance income tax (net of provision for tax) 5.78 3.99 

5.78 3.99 

Note 8 : Other current assets 
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated) 
Advance given to suppliers 
- related parties 0.03 0.03 
- others 19.99 19.97 
Duties and taxes receivable 3.27 6.72 
Prepaid expenses 0.08 0.21 
Total 23.38 26.93 
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Notc : 9 : Equity 

A) Equity share capital 
a.Authorised Share Capital 
At the beginning of the year 

Increase during the year 

At the end of the year 

b.Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 
Equity share of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid UI' 

At the beginning of the year 

Increase during the year 

At the end of the year 

c. Terms 1 rights attached to equity shares 

Asst 
March 31. 2023 

2,16000 

2.160.00 

2,157.57 

2,157.57 

( ~ in Mill ion5) 

As at 
March 31 , 2022 

2,16000 

2,160.00 

2,157.57 

2.157.57 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ~ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per sbare. In the event of liquidation of 
the Company, tbe holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts The distribution will be in 
proportion to the number of equity shares held by tbe shareholders. 

d. Reconciliation oftbe number of shares outstanding and the amount of share cn llit::It:.,:I: __________________________ ____ _ 

Equity shares off 10 each issued, subscribed and (ully paid 

At the beginning of the year 
Increase during the year 

At the end of the year 

e. Details ofthe holding more than 5% shares in the Company 
Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company as below: 

From fellow subsidiary and holding 
IRB Infrastructure Trust, (holding company) 

Nore 10: SubordinRry Debt 

Subordinated debt 
At the beginning of the year 
Increase/(decrease) during the year 

At the end of the year 

Note :11 Orher Equitv 

Attributable to the equity holders 
1. RetAined earnings 

At the beginning of the yraJ 

Profit/CLoss) for the year 

Total retained earnings 

2. Other comllrehensive income/(Ioss) 

Re-measurement gains/ (Iosse,) on defined benefit Illans 

At the biggining of the year 

Increase/(decrease) during the year 

At the end of the ye.r 

Total Other Equity 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

No. of shores ( t in millions) 
21 ,57,57,00 I 2,157.57 

21.57,57,001 2,157.57 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

No. of shares % holding 

21 ,57,57,001 100.00% 

21 ,57,57,001 100.00% 

( ~ in Millions) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

16,319.79 16,319.79 

16,319.79 16,319.79 

( ~ in Millions) 

As al As at 
March 31 , 2023 March 31,2022 

(2,796.56) (1 ,96 1.66) 
(264.71) (834.88) 

(3,061.27) (2,796.56) 

(3,061.27) (2,796.56) 

No. of shn re! ( t in milliuns) 
21 ,57,57,001 2,15757 

21,57,57,001 2,157.57 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 

No. of shares % holding 

21,57,57,001 10000% 

21,57,57,001 100.00% 



Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements fOI' the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note 12 : Non-current tinancialliabilities 

12.1 Borrowings 
Secured 
Term loans 
Indian rupee loan from banks 
Less: Current maturities 
Sub total (a) 

Indian rupee loan from financial institutions 
Less: Current maturities 
Sub total (b) 

Non-convertible debentures - Others 
Less: Unamortised transaction cost 
Sub total (c) 

Unsecured 
Loan from related parties 
- interest bearing 
Sub total (II ) 
Total (a+b+c+d) 
Terms & condition 
a.Secured 

As at March 
31,2023 

15,150.00 
(265.35) 

14,884.65 

4,000.00 
4,000.00 

18,884.65 

( ~ in Millions) 

As at March 31, 
2022 

10,679.26 
(104.64) 

10,574.62 

3,169.68 
(30.87) 

3,138.81 

4,000.00 
4,000.00 

17,713.43 

i) Secured by first charge on the movable / immovable asset by way of mortgage I hypothecation, first charge on all intangible assets, present 
and future, save and except the project assets and the first charge on borrower's account, including but not limited to the Escrow Account and 
the Sub-Accounts (or any account in substitution thereot), funds deposited from time to time (including reserves), permitted investments or 
other securities representing all amounts credited to the Escrow Account and receivables to the extent of the waterfall of priority of payments to 
the lenders under Escrow Account agreement. 

ii) Pledge of shares held by the major shareholder aggregating 51 % of the total paid-up equity share capital of the Company. 

iii) First charge on the Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve Account and any other reserves and other bank accounts of the Company. 

iv) Rate of interest on NCD from banks and financial institutions is Coupon Rate 

NCD redemption- as specified in the Debenture Trust Deed 

Tranch 1 in August -2027 

Tranch 2A in August -2027 

Tranch 2B in 23 monthly structured instalments w.e.f. October, 2027 
v) Secured borrowing ( Term Loans) from Banks and Financial Institutions have been refinanced and Non-Covertible Debentures are issued 
during the current financials year 

b. Unsecured 

The loan from related parties shall be repayable in untreated installments as per terms of the agreements 

12.2 Other financial liabilities 
Retention money payable 
- others 

Note 13 : Long-term provisions 
Major maintenance expenses 

The movement in provision for resurfacing expenses is as follows:­
At the beginning of the year 
Add:- Provision during the year 
Less:- Utilised during the year 
At the end of the year 

1.26 
1.26 

280.23 154.00 
280.23 154.00 

]54.00 46.19 
126.23 107.82 

280.23 154.00 
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Note 14 : CUlTcnt linuncial liabilities 
14.1 Borrowing 

Unsecured loan 
- From related parties 

Interest free 
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 
- Indian rupee loan from banks 
- Indian rupee loan from financial institutions 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Total 

As at March 
31,2023 

687.70 

485.27 
1,172.97 

The unsecured loan taken from holding company which is repayable on demand and are interest free. 

14.2 Trade Payables 
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
b )total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 
- related parties 
- others 
Total 
Trade payables are non-interest bearing 

14.3 Other flnancialliabilities 
Due to directors 
Retention money payable 
- related parties 
- others 
Deposit (POS) 
Revenue share payable to NHAI 
Other payables 
- related parties 

Note 15 : Other current liabilities 
Advance from customer 
- others 
Statutory dues payable (including PF, TDS, GST & others) 

1.50 

529.54 
39.45 

570.49 

0.08 

29.25 
44.65 

0.06 
29.74 

133.41 
237.19 

1.73 
1.73 

( ~ in Millions) 
As at March 31, 

2022 

685.20 

104.64 
30.87 

663.48 
1,484.19 

1.50 

580.22 
22.29 

604.00 

0.06 

23.42 
42.51 

0.05 
37.93 

135.74 
239.71 

0.15 
0.15 
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Note 16 : Revenue From Operations 
Operating income 
Contract Revenue (road construction) 
Income from toll collection 
Revenue share to NHAI- Fastag 

a • Disaggregated revenue information 
Income from services (Revenue from contracts with Customers) 
Income from toll collection 
Contract Revenue (from NHAI - Utility shifting) 
Revenue share to NHAI- Fastag 

b. Performance obligation 
Income from toll collection 

Year ended March 31, 
2023 

44.64 
2,555.29 

(20.13) 
2579.80 

2,555.29 
44.64 

(20.13) 
2.579.80 

The performance obligation in service of toll collection is recorded as per rates notified by NHAI . 
Contract Revenue 

( ~ in Millions) 

Year ended March 
31,2022 

1.32 
1,612.72 

(29.32) 
1,584.72 

1,612.72 
1.32 

(29.32) 
1,584.72 

The performance obligation under contractual agreements is due on completion of work as per terms of contracts. 

Note 17 : Other income 
Bank deposits 52.45 15.48 
Others 0.25 0.62 
Gain on sale of investment 5.21 1.24 
Other non-operative income 0.08 0.05 
Fair value gain on investments (0.00) 

57.99 17.39 

Note 18 : Road work and site expenses 
Contract expenses 15.75 1.32 
Operation and maintenance expenses 344.26 326.37 

Site and other direct expenses 0.00 
Technical consultancy & supervision charges 5.76 5.46 

365.77 333.16 
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Note 19 : Finance costs 
Interest expense 
• Tenn loan from bank / financial institutions 
• Debentures 
• on unsecured loan from related parties 
• Unwinding of discount on provision ofMMR 
Amorisation of transaction cost 
Other finance costs 

Note 20 : Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Amortisation on intangible assets 

Note 21 : Other expenses 
Rates & taxes 
Directors sitting fees 
Legal and professional fees 
Payment to auditor (refer note below) 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Bank charges 
Insurance 

Payment to auditor (including service tax / GST) 
As auditors: 
• Statutory audit fees 
- Limited review fees 

In other capacity: 
- Other services (certification fees) 

Note 22 : Tax expenses 
Total tax expenses 

Year ended March 31, 
2023 

472.59 
751.12 
581.77 

17.17 
24.51 
55.88 

1,903.05 

559.99 
559.99 

50.59 
0.26 

21.61 
0.36 
0.59 
0.18 
0.10 

73.69 

0.09 
0.15 

0.12 
0.36 

(0.00) 
(0.00) 

( ~ in Millions) 

Year ended March 
31,2022 

1,224.55 

560.00 
5.15 

7.23 
1,796.94 

305.02 
305.02 

0.82 
0.16 
2.42 
0.24 
0.D7 
0.12 
0.16 
3.99 

0.09 
0.14 

(0.01) 
0.24 

(2.07) 
(2.07) 



Yede.hi Aurangobad Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statement. ror the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note 23 : Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year, 

Diluted EPS nmoun15 are calculated by dividing tho pl'Onl attribulable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number 
of Equity shu ... , lilnt would be issued on conversion of nil the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares. 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

Profit am ibutable to equity holders for basic earnings 

Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS' 
Face value per share (in Rs ) 
Basic earning per share (in Rs.) 

Ye.r ended March 31, 
2023 

(264.71) 

21,57,57,001 
10.00 
(1.23) 

( ~ in Millions) 

Year ended March 
31,2022 

(834.88) 

21,57,57,001 
10.00 
(3.87) 

• There have been no other n·.nsactions involving Equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these financial statements. 

Note 24 : Components of Other Comprehensive Income 
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below: 

Retained Earnings 
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans 

Not e 15 : O"talls of dues to ",Ie,o Dlld anlnll c lllel' flrl~"" nl per M MEO Act, 2006 

Year ended March 31, 
2023 

( ~ in Mill ions) 

Year ended March 
31,2022 

Under Ihe MIcro, Smoll nud Mcdlum Ell lefjll'i,e, Oevdollmenr ACI, 2()OG ('MS MEO') whlQIo cnllle mto foree fro m 2 October 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small 
IlIHI Mediu", elltcll'ri lCS. On rhe louis or Ihe ,"fonlllltion nml I'euords nvnilnble whir Ihe 1I,"""Sln"OIlI, thaI •• Oil no outstanding dues to the Micro and Small enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small 
Mcdlum Ell lefjl!is" OcvtloPIllClI1 Ct, 2006 R, Set out In Ihe fo llowing <lisalosur •• , 
The di scl g ~l1rc itl "C$peci of rhe UIIIO,,"1 paynble 10 elllcrprlses which hllve provided goods nlld ~. ,'V iocs to the company and which qualify under the definition orm/cro and small entefjlrises, as defined 
under Micro, Smnll alld Medium EnlNpnseS Devolollment Act. 2006 hIlS beeu lII~d. in Ihe Inri AS fi llancial statement as at March 31, 2023 based on the infomlnllon received and available with the 
company. 

['" n.lllal .mount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the period end 

Intel est due thereon 
M IIOWII of inl<reSI paid by the Company in temlS of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), 
ulong with the nmou nl of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appoillted day during each 
accounllng ycnl;/period 

Amount of "Helost due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
beyolld the IIppolltted day dllling the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED, 
2006 

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year/period 

The nmOll ll1 of further u\t~rest f<lI1ni ll lllS dlle nlld IllIynble even in the succeeding years, until such date 
when Ibe Intru'cst dues ns above nrc no tnolly pnid 10 Ihe small entefjlrise for the pllll'ose of disallowance 
as. deduclible penditure IInder Ihe MSM13D Act, 200G 

il ) MSME ugel ll R .ehellule u. nt 

Porticulars 

MSME Undisputed Dues 
Less than I year 
1-2 Years 
2-3 Years 
MOIl: IlInll J yenl's 
'rOW I dll'" 10 micro li nd KDl DIl onterp";.es os pCI' MS MED Act, 2006 

b) Ageins or creditors other than III I<r1l enterprises and smoll enterprises as at 

Particulars 

Less than 1 year 
1-2 Years 
2-3 Vears 
More Iho l1 3 ycnrs 
TOlltl duC$ to credil o l'~ oiher thnn miel'o cn leq lrbea nnd sman entupl'ises ns Ht 

c) out or the above unbilled .mount 

Asat 
March 31, 2023 

1.50 

Year ended March 31, 
2023 

Asat 
Mnrcll 31. l023 

UO 

1_50 

10.06 
530.07 

9.64 
19.23 

4.17 

( ~ in Millions) 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 

UO 

( 1 in Millions) 
Vear ended March 

31 , 2022 

1.50 

1.50 

( ~ in Millions) 
Asat 

Ma rctl 31,l022 

43.60 
530.07 

9.64 
19.23 

602.54 

0.18 



Yedeshi Aurungabad Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 3 1,2023 

Note 26 : Fair Values 

The canying values offin8ncials instruments of the Company are reasonable and apPlOximatiolls affair values 

( ~ in Mil lions) 

I Carrying amount Fair Value 

Particulars I As at Asat Asst As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31.2022 MArch 31,2023 March 31. 2022 

Fln'Mlnl assets 
l~u"",~i~1 n!S~IS ,,, ~(\/)u , £d gl"IIQ!:lI'~d ~I 'II 
Lnnn, . 
Others 94,69 79 II 94.69 79.11 

Trade Receivable 0,49 0.49 0.49 0.49 
Cash and cash equivalents 237. 15 7350 237, 15 73 ,50 

Other than Bank balance 1,520.00 45169 1,520.00 451.69 

Eil lnll2lnl ~.s~r. II1g~ulg~ nl fnl[ ~nl!l~ 1 I !I'QlI~11 

Investments - - -
Flnsncisillabilities 
Ei ll n l!2 I n l l!~s~(§ m~~' llfed ~I [lU!Q[liled cost 
Trade payables 570.48 604.03 570.48 604.03 

BOITowings 20,057.62 19,197.62 20,057,62 19,197,62 

Other ilnnnci"llInbiiilie' 237.19 240.98 237. 19 240.98 

The managemenlassessed that cash and cash equivalents, h .. de receivables, trade payables, bank ove,draOs and othel cUlIenlliabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to Ihe shon-term 
maturities of these instruments. 

Note 27 : Fair Value Hierarchy 

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy desClibed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole 

Level I: Quoted (unadjusted) price is active market for identical assels or liabilities 
Level 2: Valuation technique for which the lowes I level input that has a significnnt effect on the fair vnlue measurement are observed, either directly or indirectly, 

Level 3: Valuation lechnique for which the lowest level input has a significant effect on the fai l' vnlue measUiemenl is not based on observable market dala . 

Note 28 : Financial risk management objectives and poliCies 
The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limils and conh'ols, and to monilor risks and adherence to limits 
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 

The Board of Direclors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's lisk management framewolk. 

In pelforming its opelating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the Credit risk, Liquidity lisk and Currency risk. 

Market Risk 
Market risk is Ihe risk Ihat the fai l' value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes ill market p. ices. Market risk comprises tltree types of risk: interest rate risk, 
cUiTency risk and other price olsk. such as equity price risk and commodity risk, Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings. deposits, FVTOCI inveslments and 
derivative financial instruments 

TIle following table sununaoles Ihe carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the end of the period by categories: 

Interest Rate Risk 
As infrastructure developlllent and construclion bllsiness is capitnl illtensive, the company are exposed to interesl rale risks. The company's infrastructure development and construction projects are 
funded to a large cxtelll by debt and any increase in interest expense may have an adverse effect on our results of operations nnd financial condition The company current debt facilities carry interest at 
variable rates as well as fixed rates with the provision for peliodic reset of interest rates. As of March 31, 2023 , the majority of the company indebtedness was subject to variable interesl rates. In view 
of the high debt to equity ratios for the company's infrastructure development projects, an incrense in interest expense is likely to have a significant adverse effect on financial results. The company is 
selectively engage in interest rate hedging transactions from time to time to protect against interest rate risks. 

The intelest rale lisk exposure is mainly from changes ill fixed and floating interest rates The interest rale are disclosed inlhe respective IIotes to the financial stalemenl of the Company. The following 
lable analyse Ihe breakdown of Ihe financial assets and liabilities by type of interesl rate : 

Financial assets 
interest bearing 
• fixed interest rate 

Loan 
Bank bnlanee othel than above 

Non interest bearing 
Others 
Cash and cash equivalent 

Investments 

Financial Liabilities 
Interest bearing 
- fixed inlerest rate 

Borrowings 
- floating interesl rate 

Bon'owings 

Non interest bearing 
Borrowings 
Trade and othel payables 
Other tinancialliabililies 

As ot 
March 31 , 2023 

1,520,00 

94.69 
237.15 

18,88465 

1,172 97 
568 .99 
237 .19 

( ~ in Millions) 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

451.69 

79.11 
73.50 

4,000.00 

13,84894 

1,34868 
602.54 
239.71 



Vedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 

Notes to Financial Statements for the yeAr ended March 31, 2023 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collatelal obligations without incurring unacceptable losses The Company's objective is to, at all times 
maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash nnd collateral requilements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains 
adequate sources of financing including debt and overdraft from banks at an optimised cost. 

The Company maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 is the carrying amounts as:-

On demand 

As at March 31, 2023 
BOIrowings 687.70 
Other linancialliabilities 
Trade and other payables 

687.70 
A. at March 31, 2022 
Borrowings 685.20 
Other linancial liabilities 
Trade and other payables 

685.10 

Less than 12 months 

485.27 
237.19 
570.49 

1,292.95 

798.99 
239.71 
602.54 

1,64 1.24 

1 to 5 years 

677.77 
1.26 

679.03 

> 5 years 

18,884.65 

18,884.65 

17,035.66 

17.035,66 

( t in MliliLlll$) 
Total 

20,05762 
237. 19 
570.49 

20,865.30 

19,197.62 
240.98 
602.54 

At present, Company does expect to repay all liabilities at their conn actual maturity. In order to meet such cash comminnents, operating activity is expected to generate sufficient cash inflows 

Note 29 : Capital management 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convel1ible preference shales, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity 
holdel s of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the sh .. eholder value, 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital sn ucture, 
the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital to shareholdelS or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by 
total capital plus net debt, The Company's policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio i e between 60% to 80% The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and 
othel payables, less cash and cash equivalents. excluding discontinued operations. 

6orrowin!)!l 
Less: cash and cash equivalents 
Net debt 

Equity 
Sub-ordinate debt 
Total sponsor capital 
Copital and net debt 
Gearing ratio (%) 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

20,057.62 
(237.15) 

19,820.48 

(903 .70) 
16,319.79 

35,136,57 
56,25 

( t in Millions) 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

19,197.62 
(73.50) 

19,124,11 

(638.99) 
16,319.79 
15,680.80 
34,804,91 

54.95 

In 01 del to achieve this overall objective. the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings that define capital stmcture requirements Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the 
financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the cutTent period, 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital dUling the period ended Malch 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

Note 30: Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and Assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, 
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjusnnent to the 
canying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods , 

Estimates ond assumptions 
Estimates and underlying assumptions ale leviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods afe affected. 

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key soulces of estimation uncel1ainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, al'e described below. The Company based its assllmptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. 
Existing circumstances and assumptions about futUle developments, howevel', may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the connol of the Company. Such changes 
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

Resurfacing Expenses 
As per the Service Concession Agreements, the company is obligated to carry out resUl-facing of the roads under concession The company estimates the likely provision required towards resurfacing and 
accrues the costs on a sn'aight line basis over the period at the end of which resurfacing would be required, in the statement of profit and loss in accordance with 1nd AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets. 

Amortization oflntangible Assets 
The intangible assets which are recognized in the fOllll of Right to charge users of the infrasn'ucture asset are amol1ized by taking proportionAte of actual revenue received for the year over Total 
Projected Revenue from project to Cost of Intangible assets. The estimation of total projection revenue requires significant assumption about expected growth rate and traffic projection for future. All 
assumptions afe reviewed at each repOlting date_ 



'l'edes hi Aur/lngnhnd Tollway Limitl'd 

Notes to FilllHlciol StlHcmcnlS for Ihl' )' l'ar l'mJeti 1\ 1:1I'rll 3 I, 2023 

Tues 
Tax expense comllrlses ofcnueut and defcrred tax. Curreul lIlI;mne tax IS measull'11 at Ihe amOUUI C~ I)C c t cd 10 be IJa ld to Ihe tax au thorities in accordance wJlh the Income Tllx Act, 196 1. I)(feITed 
incollle tl.'(es reflects Ihe impact of timinJ; differences betweeu Ia~ablc meOIll.: lind accuunli nH Ullum.: OrlJ;i ll lltl ns \.lUI ing the eurrenl period and reversal of timing differt ncts of earl ier years. 

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax mtes alld the t a .~ IIIW5 enacted or substontively enacted althe bal /l llCe sheet da te. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilit ies are offset, if legally enforceable 
right exists 10 set-off currenl IIiX usets against current tax liabil ities and the deferred tax Ilssets and deferred tax liabilities related to Ihe ta )(es on income levied by same goveming taxation laws. Deferred 
la)( assels arc recognised only to the exlent Ihal Ihere is reasollable ee'1ainty that sufficient future ta.'( /Ible income wi ll be available against which such deferred tax assets clln be realised. In situations 
where the Company has unabsorbed del)reciation or CII Il) ' forward ta.'( losses. all defeu ed ta)( assets are recognized only if there is virtnal certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be 
realized IIgainst fu ture taxable Ilrofi ts. 

At each balnnee sheet date the Compnny fe-assesses unrecognised deferred ta.>( nsselS. It recogn ises unrecognised deferred tax assets to the e)( tent thaI it has become reasonably certain that sufficient 
future ta )(able iucome will be Ilvailable Ilgainst which such defelTed ta.'( Ilssets can be rcalised or virtua lly certain as the case may be. 

The carrying amount of deferred ta)\ nssets 8re reviewed at eAch bnlnuce sheet dnte. The Compllny writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tllX asset to the exlent that il is no longer reasonably 
certain or virtually cel'lnin, as the case may be, that sufficient fulure taxable income will be a\'a illlble againsl which deferred tll )( asset clln be realised. Any such write-down is rcversed to the eXlent thaI it 
becomes rellsollably cerlaiu or virtually cCl1ain, liS the case may be. th ll l sufficlenl f"lure IIIX ll lilc incomc will be 1I \'llilable. 

Minimum IIllernmive ta.~ (MAT) credil is recognised as all Asset onl )' when 1111(\ to the e)(tcnl there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay income tllX higher thlln th llt computed under MAT. 
dnring the period thai MAT is permitted to be Sct oft'underthe Income Ta.'( Act, 1961 (speci fi ed period). III the year, in which the MAT credit bec01l1eseligible 10 be recognised as 1111 asset in accordance 
with the n:commendMiolis contained in Ihe guidonce nOle issued by Ihe Instilule or Chal1cred Accounl ll nts of India (ICAI), the said asset is created by wily of a credit to the Statement of profit and loss 
alld shown as MAT credil entitlement. The Company reviews Ihe sallIe al ea\,:h balnnee sheet dille nntl writes down Ihe eany ing IImount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is 110 longer 
convincing evidence 10 the effcct that the Company will pay ineoille lOX higher thtl ll MAT tl lI l;lIg the speci ficd IM!l'iod. 

Note 31 : Disctosures with regard to Toll Collection Rights ( Int angihle ,\ ssets) : 

Name or Concesslonnirt' l 'edeshi ,\ urangabad Tollwly Limited 

Stan of concession period under concession agreement (AI)pointed da te) July 1,201 5 

End of concession )eriod under concession II' cement June 30, 2041 

I)eriod of concession since Ihe appointed date 26 years. 

Construction completion da te or scheduled construction complc tion da tI! under the cOllcession agreement. December 26, 20 18 
liS apvlicable 

The above BOl'l DI3FOT projects shall have following rights! oblignt ions in lIeeOl'dn llce with the Concession Agreement entered into with the Respective Govenllnent Authorities:-

a. Rights to use the Specified Assets 
b. Obligations 10 provide or rights to expcct provision of services 
c. Obliglltiolls to deliver or righls 10 rece;ve at the cnd of the COllcession 

Note 32: Other StAtutOry InrormAtion 
i) TIle COml)any have not trll.ded or inveSled in Clypto cuuency or Virtual Currency during the fi uancial )'ear. 
ii) The Company docs nOI hold bellami propcny and no proceedings under IlcnAmi t11lnsaCl ion (Pl'Ohibit iol1) Act 1988 have: been initiated against Ihe company. 
iii) The Company do 1101 have allY IranSllCl ions wi th companies struck oIT. 
iv) The Company ha\'e nOlliny such lfa usactioll which is not recOI'ded ill the books of IIceoulits Ihat has been sUITel1defed or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments Ullder lhe Income 
Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or Sllt'VC)' or any other relewlllI pro\·isions of the Income Ta.'( ACI. 196 1 

v) The Company ha \'e nOI receIved any fuml from any 1~ 1 50I\(S) or ell tity(ies ), including foreign (ntil ies (Funding Party) with the underslandins (whether r~orded in writing or otherwise) thlli lhe 
Company shall: 
(a) direct ly or indirectly le lld or invest ill other 1M!I"S0liS or ~lIt i t i es identified ill ally manner whalsoever by or 011 behalf of Ihe FUliding Party (Ultimate Bcnefieill.ries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee. se<:ur ity or the like on behal f of the U1timll1e Bcne rl e i~ , 'ies 

vi) The Company have not advance or lo~ned or iuvcsted (cither frolll borrowed fu nd or shan: PICIilIUIII or llny other source or kind of fund ) by the cOl1lpllny to or in an)' person(s) or ~ntily( i es), including 
foreign ~ ntiti es (Funding Party) wi lh the understanding (whether recorded III writ ing or otherWise ) th:u the COllipany shall : 

(0) directly or indirec tly lend or inves t in other persons or entities idcnt ilied in nn)' m~lH l e l whatsoever by or all behnlf of the company (U ltimate Benefici aries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ult imate Beneficiaries. 
vii ) The Company did not have !lny long-tenn cont racts including derivati ve contract for which thcrc were any IlIhierial foreseeable losses. 
viii) The Company has not declared A wi lful default er by any blink! fin :mcinl institulion or ally other lender during the year. 
ix) Compnny hAS used the borrowiugs from banks and fiunlleial institutions for specific purpose fo r whicll it was laken lit Ihe balance sheet date. 

NOle J3 : Other financiAl informntion • ratios 
The accounting mtios required de rived from the Restaled Financial Information unde,' clause II of I)nll A of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations are given below: 

l'ArtieulArs 1I0te refel'Cl1cc 
As III As pt 

% Varllnce Remarks 
Mltreh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Current ra tio higher in FY22 mainly 011 
Currcnt rlltio (in limes) , 0.95 1.82 -48% account of surplus funds parked in Mutual 

Funds. 

Debt - E nit Ratio b 1.09 1.04 4% 
Toll Collection in FY 22 was impacted 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio , 1.80 1.11 62% due 10 Secolld wave of Covid-19 and 
Landslide lit Kanlilld Ghat Section 

Toll Collection in FY 22 was impacted 
Retutl\ on Equity (ROE): d ·Z" o ·5% 66% due to Second wave of Covid- 19 and 

Landslide at Kannad Ghat Section 

Invento TUl110ver Ratio NA NA NA 
Trade receivables IUl110ver ralio no. of days) NA NA NA 

Trade pA)'abJes tunlOlIer mlio (no. of days) , 273.84 208.05 32% 
Substantial e:r< pensc booked in later part of 

the year 

Toll Collection ill FY 22 was impacted 
Net profit mtlO r - 10% -52.68% 8 1% due to Second wave of Covid·1 9 and 

Landslide at Kannad Ghat Section 

Toll Collection in FY 22 was impacted 
Net cAll itallumover rat io , 2.'1 I -7.60 132% due to Second wave of Covid-1 9 and 

Landslid e: at Kanllad Ghat Section 

(;~ f,,) Toll Collection in FY 22 was impacted 
Retllni on capital employed (ROCE) h 14% 4.28% ?7 233% due 10 Second wave of Covid-1 9 alld ,,' Landslide at Kallnad Ghat Section 

" 
~U-. .., ,) 
~. ~. 
~/)& . Q4 



Vedeshi Aurangabad TolIlI'lI), Limited 

NOles 10 FinQncial Slnlern ... IIIS for Ihe yea r ended I\lnrch J I, 202J 

NOI ... : 
II. Curr ... nt ralio (in limes) : CUIH~ nl Ass ... ts! CILITenlliabilitics 
b. Debl· Equi ty ralio : TOla! Debl divided by Equity. 
c. Debl Service Covemge Ralio (DSC!{) (no. of times) : ])rofil before inlcrest And provisioll for Illnjol' Ilinilltell ll ilce. divided by lllteresl expense (net of moratoriulil illterest. in terest cost 011 ullwindinll 
(lollg tenn unsecured 10a1lS) and alllOl"lisatioll of transaclion cost and ill1ercst on loml from relaled pally) together with l"epll)'lIIelits of 10llg term debt during the period (lieuI'd 01T to the extent of long lel1l1 
10811S availed dilling the sallie period for the repayment) 

d. ROE : Net Profits ailer laxes I Average ShQreholder's Equity . 
.... Trade payables IUniover ralio .. NI' l Credit Purchases I Average Trade l'ayahlcs· No of days 
f. Net l)fofit llIargi ll (in %0) : profit aller tax ! Revenue from OIJoCfn lioll. 
g. Net capital lumovcr ratio " Net SlIleS I Workiug CallilaL 
h. Eoming before interest olltl taxes! Cnpi tal Employed (Cllpilal Employcd '" Tangible Nel WOl1h I- Total Debt '" Deren'ed Tax Liability) 

Noll' 34: Basis or prepllrntion offillnllrinlstatemellts 
The Company hns I)resellted these standalolle fi nancia l infonuntioll ( fOI' 1111 th ~ periods pr~s~'lIt cd there ill ) ill accordauce with lhe requirement of Schedule III • of the Compnllies Act. 20 ] 3 including 
nmendments therelo. effective from Apri l 0 1.2021. 

Note 35: Trnde recei\'nbles 
Concelllllltion of creditt;sk Wilh reSll«1 to trode receivables :Ire high. due to lhc Company's customer base \}ei llg limited. Alltrllde rect1vables are reviewed and assessed for deflult on a quarterly basis. 
Based on historical experience of collecting receh'ables indi~luc II low credi t risk. 

The following table provides infonnallOIl aboul Ihe ageing of gross cnnyillg IInIount of trade rccie\'ables as at : 

Gron Carrying Amount 

Undisputed Trade recicyablcs ·considcred good 
Contract assets (unbilled revenlle) 
Not due 
Less than 6 Months 
6 monlhs • I year 
1·2 Years 
2·3 Vears 
More Ihan J years 
Tota] 

Asat 
March 31 , 2023 

0.49 
0.49 

( Rs in mill ions) 
A~ at 

March 31, 2022 

0.49 

0.49 



Yedeshi Auran~abad Tollway Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Note 36: Related parties Disclosures 

Names of relnted parties 

Holding Company 
IRB Infrastructure Trust ( w e. f. 26/02/2020) 

IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited ( upto 25102/2020) 

Sponsor and Project Manager 
IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited 

Fellow Subsidiary 
IRB Westcoast Tollway Limited (lRBWTL) 
AE Tollway Limited (AETL) 
Solapur Yedeshi Tollway Limited (SYTL) 
Kailhal Tollway Limited (KTL) 
Palsit Dankuni Tollway Private Limited (PDTPL) 

CG Tollway Limited (CGTL) 
Kishangarh Gulabpura Tollway Limited (KGTL) 
IRB Hapur Moradabad Tollway Limited (lRBHMTL) 
Udaipur Tollway Limited (UTL) 

Subsidiary company of Sponsor (Only with whom there have been transactions durin1/: the yearl there was balance outstandin~ at the period end) 
Modern Road Makers Private Limited 

Key Management Personnel 
Ms. Shilpa Todankar, Director 
Mr. Abhay Phalak, Director (w e.f. 09.03.2022) 
Mr Jitendra Sharma, Director (upto 28.02.2022) 
Mr. Devendra Ranka, ChiefFinancinl Officer (w.eJ. 1O.1l.2022) 

Statement of Trnnsactions with Related Parties 
For the year ended March 31, 2023 

a) Related Party Transactions 

Mr. Chandrashekhar Kaplan, Director 
Mr. Darshan Sangurdekar, Director 
Swati Chandekar, Company Secretory (w.e.f.10 .11.2022) 

MrJaiprakash Nandi, Chief Executive Officer (w.e f. 10 11 2022) 

Particular 
Holding Company Sponsor nnd Project Mallager Subsidiary company or Sponsor 

Mar-23 Mar-22 Mar-23 Mar-22 Mar-23 Mar-22 

Short term borrowings 2,50 148.50 - -
IRB Infrastructure Developers Limited - -
IRB Infrashllcture Tlllst 2.50 148.50 - -
Ol)eralion & Maintenanre - - 243.59 223.70 . -
IRS Infrastructure Developers Limited - - 243.59 223.70 

Payment mnde 10 lrade I,ay.ble - 44.79 191.28 5.89 1.44 
iRB Infrastructure Developers Limited - - 44.79 191.28 
Modem Road Mnkeos Private Limited - 5.89 144 

Utility Shifting Expenses - - - - 1.32 
Modem Road Makers Provate Limiled - - 1.32 

Interest on unsecured 10al1 581.77 560,00 - - - -
IRD Infrastructure TllIst 581.77 560.00 - -
Intereslraid on unsecured loan 732.50 450.00 - - -
IRS Infr.structure Trust 732.50 450.00 - - - -
Dirertor Sitting Fees - - - - -
C.S. Kaptan - -
Mr Darshan Sanguldckar . - . 
JII~lId ra Shanlla - - - -
Shllrn Todankal' - - -
Abhny Phatak - - -

( ~ in MlIllons) 

Key Management Personnel 

Mar-23 Mar-22 

-
- . 
-
-- -

-

- -
0.26 0.16 
006 0.05 
0.07 0.05 

- 0.04 
008 002 
0.05 0.00 



Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limite" 
Notes to Financial Statement. for the year ended March 3],2023 

b) RalRlrd Par!y IlnillnOf'! 
( ~i" M'II Q s) I I n 

Particular 
Holding Company Sponsor ond Project Manager Subsidiary company or Sponsor Key Managemen! Personnel 

Mor-21 Mat'-ll Mar-23 Mor-22 Mar-23 Mor-ll Mor-23 Mor-22 

Shorl term borrowings 519.80 517.30 167.90 167.90 · · 
IRB InfraslrUclure Developers Limited - 167.90 167.90 · · -
IRB I"frasu"ucture TllIst 519.80 517 .~O - - -
Long term borrowings 4,000.00 4,000.00 · · · 
IRS l"fraslrUcture Trust 4.000,00 4,000,00 · · · 
Sub-debllaken 16,319.79 16,319.79 · · · - · · 
IRS I"fmstruclure Trusl 16,319.79 16,319.79 · · · · · 
Trade Payable · · 529.54 574.33 · 5.89 · · 
IRB InfraslrUcture Developers Limiled · 529.54 574.33 · · · 
Modem Road Makers Privale Limiled · · 5.89 · · 
In teres! payable on Unsecured Loan 485.27 636.00 - · · · · 
IRS I"frastrllcture Trust 485.27 636.00 · · 
Other payable 8.17 10.50 125.20 125.20 0.04 0.04 · 
IRS InfraslrUcture Trust 8. 17 10.50 · · · 
IRS Infrastructure Developers Limited 125.20 125.20 
Modern Road Makers Private Limited 0,04 0,04 

Relenllon Money Payable · · 8.39 · 20.86 23.42 · 
Modem Road Makers Privale Limiled · · · · 20.86 23.42 
IRB Infi'aslrUcture Developers Limited · 8.39 · · -
Advance given - · · · 0.03 0.03 · · 
Modem Road Makers Privale Limited · · · · 0.Q3 0.03 

Olrwor SllIillg Fe", Pllynblr · · · · · · 0.08 0.06 
Ralendm Kumnr Ag~rw31 · 0.01 
C,S, Knll lnn · · 0.02 0,02 
Ji lend", Shul'll1l1 · · · · · 0.01 
Oarshnn Sanguld ekar 0,02 002 
Shllpn Todnukru · · · · 002 0,01 
Abhny l'hRlnk 0.02 000 

Terms nnd conditions of Iran sac lions with relnled pnrlics 

I . TIle company in the course of our business have entered into Val ious tlallSflClions with relnted parties 111ese hansactiolls include opclfltion and maintenwlce charges paid fOI opel filion and 
mainlenance "clivil ies sub-contracled, loans and advruICes, certain road work expenses fOI work road work contracled 10 Ihe pl'Ojecl oflhe compruly. nle transaclion wilh related parties are made 
on lerms equivalenllo Ihose tlIDI prevail in ann's lenglh tr"ansactions 

2. OUlslanding balances allhe pel'iod-end are unsecured and interesl flee and settlemenl occurs in cash 
3. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related pal1y receivables or payables 

4. For reponing period ended, Ihe company has nol lecorded any impainnenl of receivables relalinglo runounls owed by related parties nlis assessmenl is undertaken each reportmg period 
Ihrough examining Ihe financial pas ilion of Ihc relaled pmly and Ihe markel in which Ihe I elated pal1y operales 

Note 37: Events after reporling period 

There is no subsequent even I after Ihe rep0l1ing pel iod which requires adjustmenls 10 Ihe finrulcial slatentenls. 

Note 38 : Previous period comparalives 

Previous period's figures have been regrouped/reclassified, whelever necessmy, 10 confinn 10 current peliod's classificalion, 

As per our report on even date 

CA. Vooudev Sunderd., Matta 
Partner 
Membership No.046953 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 28.04.2023 

For and on behalfoflhe Board of Dil'eclolS of 
Yedeshi Aurangabad Tollway Limited 

ClN: U45300MH20 l4PLC255280 

Director 
DIN: 09519500 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 28.04,2023 

sw~ 
Company Secrelary 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale : 28.04 .2023 

~\,,~ 
~r 
Diteclor 
DIN: 08683910 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale : 28,04 .2023 

~ 
Devendrn Rnnka 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale : 28.04 .2023 

Place: Mumbai 
Dale : 28 04 ,2023 
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